
 

Overview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny Committee        

AGENDA    
 

DATE: 

 

Wednesday 24 October 2012 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1&2                              

Harrow Civic Centre 

 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 4) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Jerry Miles  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Sue Anderson 
Ann Gate 
Krishna James 
Zarina Khalid 
 

Kam Chana 
Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
Paul Osborn (VC) 
Stephen Wright 
 

  
 

 
 
Representatives of Voluntary Aided Sector:  Mrs J Rammelt/Reverend P Reece 
Representatives of Parent Governors:  Mrs A Khan/1 Vacancy 
 
(Note:  Where there is a matter relating to the Council’s education functions, the “church” 
and parent governor representatives have attendance, speaking and voting rights.  They are 
entitled to speak but not vote on any other matter.) 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Nana Asante 
2. Ben Wealthy 
3. Victoria Silver 
4. Sasi Suresh 
5. Krishna Suresh 
 

1. Chris Mote 
2. Tony Ferrari 
3. Christine Bednell 
4. Susan Hall 
 

  
 

 
 
Contact:  Alison Atherton, Senior Professional - Democratic Services 
Tel:  020 8424 1266    E-mail:  alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 24 October 2012 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL/CABINET    
 
 (if any). 

 
7. SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME   (Pages 11 - 18) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Families 

 
8. ACADEMIES SCHOOL CONVERSIONS   (Pages 19 - 36) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Directors of Children and Families and Place Shaping 

 
 
 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 24 October 2012 

9. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN AND YOUTH OFFENDING IMPROVEMENT PLAN   
(Pages 37 - 70) 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Families 

 
10. COUNCIL SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS    
 
 Oral report of the Corporate Director of Resources 

 
11. SHAPING A HEALTHIER FUTURE FOR NORTH WEST LONDON - HARROW'S 

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION BY NHS NW LONDON   (Pages 71 - 82) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
12. REPORT FROM THE PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEE CHAIR   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
13. SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBER REPORT   (Pages 83 - 90) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II   

 
 Nil   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



� ����������	
����
��	�������������������������������� ��������

�
�
�

����������	
����
��	��

������������

��	
����

�

������������������
�
�
��������	� �� ��
	�������������������
� � �
�
����


��	� �� �
�� 	
����	�

�� !����"�	��
��  		�#����
�� �
��	�$����%&'��
�

�� !���"	��������
�� (���	��!"���
�
�� )�
�������	�
�� ����"�	�*��+"��
�

�
�����
�
�
����	�

%,��
	����� �
�
'�
�
-� ������.�������
-� .�����	
�)�.�����
�

%)���	��#����	���'�
�
�� ���� �!"�	�
�

�������������	�
��
����


����
�

�� )"�������/0����
�

��	
���1�2�

�� 0�	�����������������	��
%&'�0�	���������+�����3�.��������������
-� 0�	����������+�����������
�
�
�

����� �������������� ����!��"���������
�
 #$%&�#'	� � 4�� 	���� �"�� ����	
�	��� ��� �"��������	+� �3� �"�� 3������	+� 

���
�����	��
�.�������������5��
�
��
�	������������
�

.��������������
�

��
	�������6�����������
��
���	�	�� ��
	��������
��	�$����
�
�

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 10 

1



�

���7���� � ����������	
����
��	��������������������������������

����� '��
�����
���
(������������
�
 #$%&�#'	��4��	�����"����"��3������	+��	�������������
������
5�
�
 +�	
��8������9�����
	������3����)��	��	
�������+��� �������	��
��
	��������
��	�$���� 
������
��� 	�	����
	����� �	������� �	� �"��� �"�������	�
�"��6���
��3��"��:�	
�	�;����6��+�
���	
������"�
����
��	�����	�*���
���	�<��
�"����
�
� �����	� �	� �"�� ������"����� �"������������� ��	��
���
��	
� ����
�

��	<�
�
��
	��������
��	�$���=�

��	+��"����
�����3��"�������	+=������
������
���	�	�
���
	����� �	������� �	� �"��� �"�� "�
� �	���

��
� �"�� >�"
�� �	� :�3�?� ������<� � �"��
��
�
������	��	��"��������"������"���������������	��
���
��	
�����
�
��	<�
�

)**�� "���������
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����"����	
�����3��"�������	+�"��
��	��7��
�������=������@�	�
������
��	
���+	�
�������������������
<�
�

)*+�� ,��
���-�����
�����
�
 #$%&�#'	��4��	�����"���	���
�����A
�����	��������������
�����"�������	+�

	
����"����������	���3�����������)����

���.
�����<�
�

)*��� ,�����
�����
�
 #$%&�#'	� �4��	���� �"���	���������	������� �������
���� �"�������	+�
	
���
�"����������	���3�����������)����

���.
����2<�
�

)*)��  �(��������(�
���
����
.����������
�
 #$%&�#'	��4��	�����"���	����3���	����������������
<�
�

 #�%""#/'#'��0#"$���
�

)*1�� ���������
�����%!��!��2�����$���������
����������
�
�������� �������
� �� ������� �3� �"�� 0������	��� 0�������� �3� )���	���"���
0��������	���	
�)��3����	����"��"������
�
��	�
�
�����	��"�	+�������"��
�������3� �����	��������� �3� �"������
	����$����"� �	
�*����6��	+��	
�$����"�
���
��	�� ���
� �������� �	
� ���������� 3��� �������	�������� �3� $������ B�
�"�
)�������	�� �������������
��	��� �"������������	
����
��	�����������<� �4"��
�33����� �������
� �"��� �"�� ��������� ��� ������� �������	�������� �3� �"�� $������
B�
�"� )�������	�� �	��� �"�� ���������� ������ 3���� �"�� ���
��	�� .������
>.�
�3�	�	+�B�
�"�C	+�+���	�<?��4"����������	���
�
����	�	�����	+<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����"���"�	+����	��"�����
��	�����
�����������+���
<�
�
 ��

!����
� #�%""#/'	��%�����
	���'�
�

2



�

����������	
����
��	�������������������������������� ���7����

4"������������	��������3�$������B�
�"�)�������	����������	��
�������������
�
	�	�����	+���������3��"������������	
����
��	�����������<�
�

)*3�� �
��������$�(����,
�������$����������������������
�
���������������
�����������3��"�� ������	���"��3�CD��
������"��"������
���"��
E��	�������	����3� �"����
	���=� �"��)�������	
���"�������	��������"���������	
�
�	���������� ��"����
�� ���
��� �
�	��3��
� �	� �"�� ������+���  �������	�<� � 8	�
�

����	=� ��� ����
�	�
� �"�� 
�3�	����	� �3� ����
	���� ��3���� ��� �	��

�	+� ��"���
���������3���3�����	��

�	+���3�+
��
�	+��
�	��������

�����	
���
	+�������=�
�

�����	+� 
�������� �����	��=� "���� ������ �	
� ����
	���� ��	���	�� �	
�
"����	+����������������3������
����3�
�
+���	
F�������"��<�
�
4"���33������
����
��"����"������
	������3����)��	�����������
��������	��	
�

�33���
� 3����������
�� ���	�� �	� �"��� ���� �����������D��	
�
<� � 8������"���
�
�"��� �"��	�D�����	���
�
���� ���
�� �	�;���
�������1<� �4"�����
�
����	� �"���
�"������
�
�����������	��������	+�
����3����"��������+�����������	�<�
�
4"�� 6���
+"� �����	
��� �������
� �"��� �"�� ���	� ��	���	�
� ��������������
3�+
�����	
��"����"����������
��	���
����	
�3����
�+������	
������	���33�	���<��
$�� �������
� �"��=� �	� ������ �3� �"�� ����� 
�� ��� 
���� 3�+
���=� �"���� �����
��

����	�� �	� ������ �3� ��������� ������ %&<7G'=� �������� %�<�G'=� ����
�	�����
�
�+����� %��<�G'=� �"�3�� �3� ��"������ %�&G'=� 
�������� �����	��� %1G'� �
�� �	�
�	��������	��"�3��3������"������%�&G'<��4"����3�+
����������������������������	�
�"�� �����������	� )������ �������<� �  �� �"�� ����	�� �"���� ���� �� ��+	�3���	��
��

����	��	��������
��"���������
��"���������"�������2��������"����"�
����	��	�
�	������� �	� ������ 

��	+� �"�� �
�
�	� �	
� �"���3���� �"���� ��
�
� ��� �	�
�	������
�
�������	���3�����
����<�
�
����������
�������	����	
���@�
�A
�����	�����3������5�
�

•�  ���������D������
�"���
�������3�����	�������	+������
�
����"�3�+
����
��������� �"��� "�
� 	��� ���	� �	��

�
� �	� �"�� ������� ��� "�� "�
� ���	�� ��
��	��
����������
	���3������+��	+��"��
+"��"��������<�

�

•�  �������������
��"����"������"������������
����	�����"����"���������3�
�"�� ��3��� $������ )���	���"��� "�
� �D��	
�
� �"�� ���� �D��������
��	���	�
��"��� ���
�
�	���"�����������������������"��<� ����������=� �"��
$����"� �	
�*���� 6��	+� 6���
� 
�
� 	��� "���� ������ ������ �������"��<��
4"��6���
+"������	
��������	
�
��"��� ���
����	����� ���"�
����	��"��
������	������3�����"��
����"���"�
����	��"����������3��"����3���$������
)���	���"����
�� �"���"����
�
������� �"�������	������"� �"��+��
���	
�
�"��3�CD��
����<�

�

•� 4"�� �33����� 
	
�����@� ��� �����
�� �� ������	� �����	��� ��� �� ������?��
A
�����������"��"��

+���3
	
�
��"���&�"�
��$������������	�<�� 	��"���
�������A
�����	�
��"��"����"��"�����	��"�
����	��
�����3
���	
�����
�
����
� �"��� ��������	��

����	��� �������	+����"�	�����	
��"��� �������

�33��
�����������������"�	+���	��
����������	��������
��������
��<�

�

3



�

���7���� � ����������	
����
��	��������������������������������

•�  � ������� �D������
� ��	���	� ��� �"�� ��������	� �	� ����������� 3���� �	��
����� ��� �"�� 	�D�� �	
� 3���� �	�� ���
� ��� �"�� 	�D�<� � 4"�� 6���
+"�
�����	
��������	
�
��"��������������
��"�
��� ���� �������3������=�
�����	��+���
�
�	���	�����������+��������
����3������	��3��"�����
����	<�

�

•� 8	� ������ �3� �"�� 
��� �3� :�����  ����  +�����	�� 3
	
�	+=� �"�� �33�����
�������
� �"��� H��=���� "�
� ���	� ��
�� ���������� 3��� �A
����	��
�
��"����� �
�� �"��� �"�� ������� "�
� 
���
�
� �"��� �"������� 	��� �"������
3�����
��	
��"����	����
��"������
�������
�
����
��
�3����"���
�
�	���
���@<��

�

•�  � ������� �����
� �"��� �"�� 6���
+"� �����	
��� "�
� ������
����
�������
��"����	���"��	
������������������������
���
����&��?����@��	��"��
�3���	��	��	
������������
��
�������
	+�������<��$��A
�����	�
��"���
���@� ���� ���	+� 
�	�� ���"� ��"����� �	
� �"�� 6���
+"� �����	
���
�
����
��"���"��"�
��������"������3��"��$��
�����"�����
���"���	���	��
��"�������������	���
�����3������������������������<�

�

•�  �������������	��
� �"����	���������"�	
� �"��
������
�
����"���3
��
�	� ��
��� ��� +���� �	� �	
������	� �3� �"�� 
�33���	��� ������	� $������ �	
�
��"��� ����
+"�=� 3��� �D�����=� �	� �������	� ��� �"�� �����	��+�� �3�����	�
�"���������������<� �4"��6���
+"������	
��������
� �"���������	+�����
3���� ����	+� �	
� ����
����� 	��
�
� ��� ��� 
������
� A
��@��� �	
� �"���
��
�
� ��� 
�	�� ��� �"�� ���
��� �3� �"�� 
��� �3� �	�����+�	��� �������
<��
��������������������� �������	
� �"��#�����	
�)���������	+�<� �4"��
�33������

�
� �"��� �"����"�
����	�
���
����	�����"� �"�����
��	�� ���
��
������"����������������
�������������"������������
���	�
��	�3�����"��
�����������	�)���������������	��������3���	�"=�������	
����
��	���
���
����������������������	�<�

�

•� .�3����	+� ��� �"�� ��������� ��� ����� �	� �

����	��� H�7<I�� ����	+�=� ��
������� ��
+"�� �����3������	� ��� ��� �"��� �"���� �	��

�
<� � 4"�� �33�����
�
����
��"����"��������	��"����	��D���3��"����
	���?���

+��<�

�

•�  ���������D������
���	���	=� �	� �������	� ��� �"��*���
���	�������
��=�
3����"����3�����3��"��
��	�����	
�	+��"��8�;�
	
����	���"�����	
��"��"���
�	���

����	�������
�����������	+�
������
��	��"�������<��4"��6���
+"�
�����	
��� �����	
�
� �"��� �"�� ���3���� �3� �"�� ����
+"� ����
���
���	�	���� 6���@� �	
� ��	������ C�"	��� �	
� �"��� �"�� ������� ��
�
�
��	��	
�� ��� ���@� �������� ���"� ������ �
��	������ �	
� �����	
� ��� �	��
�	3�������	��������
<�

�

•�  ��������A
�����	�
=��	��������3���

��	+�����33�	
�	+=��"��	
������3�
��
	+���������"��B�
�"��33�	
�	+�4����%B�4'�������
���	�������@�	+�
���"� ��� �"�� ������� �	��� �������
� ��� �	��

�� 3�+
���� 3��� �

���<� � 4"��
6���
+"������	
����
����
� �"��� �"��B�4�"�
�
�	���33������� ����+��
���@� ��� �"�� ������� ������	� �	
� �"��� �	��� 1� �3� �"�� ���� ���	� "�
�
����33�	
�
<� �$��
	
�����@� ��������
�������������"� ������

����	���
3�+
���<� � 8	� ������ �3� �������=� "�� �������
� �"��� �"�� ����� ��E������ �3�
���������	
��
�+���������
��	�$�������
���"����"�����	��"����	+��3���	+�
�"���������������"�����
�+���������	+��	����"������
+"<��$����3����
����

4



�

����������	
����
��	�������������������������������� ���71���

�"�����@����	+�
�	�����"����"�����+��	���#�	+�=��"��"�$������6���?�
��"���� ���� @��	� ��� �
�����=� �	
� ��"��� ����� �	� �"��"� ��� ��@�� �	�
��������"�	������������
�
�	��������3�<�

�

•�  � ������� �
++����
� �"��� �3� ������������ 
���� ���� ��� ��� �����
�
=� ���
�"�
�
����3�����
�
����0�������������������3����
��	�������
�����	����
�������<� � 8	� �

����	=� �"�� ����� �	��

�
� �	� �"�� ������� ����� 	���
��+������	
=��	�3
�
��=�������������+�����������"�
�
���������
�
<�

�

•�  � ������� ��
+"�� �����3������	� ��� ��� �"�� �������	� �	� �"�� ����
	����
���++����	
������
����
��"����"����������	��"�
�	����������	��	����
<�

�

•� 8	� �����	��� ��� �� ������?�� A
�����	=� �	��"��� ������� �
���	�
� �"��
>�"
�� �	�:�3�?���������"��"�"�
����	� �	���

��
���� ��3��������	������	+�
�
�A
���������	���	�
<��4"����	�
���
�����������"��;����6��+�
���	
��"���
�������	������	���"��� �3� �"��;����6��+�
�����������
�����"���������3��1�
������ �	� �� ����=� �"�� �����	F��+�	������	� �����	������ 3������	��	�	���
��
�
�����"��+�
<�

�

•� 8	� �����	��� �����A
�����	����
�������	���	��3�
�������� �����	��=� �"��
�33����� �
����
� �"���*"���� .����	� 0��� "�
� ���	� �	���

��
� �� �����?�
�+�� �	
� �"��� �"�� �������� �����
�
� �
����<� � 4"���� ���� �	�
33����	��
��������� ��� 
���� ���"� �"�� ���
�� �
�� �"�� �33����� �

�
� �"�� ������� �	�
$������������D�����	�����
����	+����"���<�

�

•�  �����������"�����
��"���������	����3������	+������	�����3��������
�	�����	+���D
��������	����"��"��������+��
�
�������������
�E���<��4"��
�33����� �
����
� �"��� ��	��
����������@����� ���	+� 
�	�� �	� ��"����� ���
�"����D
���,����	��� 
��������������������	�����3��"������+�������3��"����
"�

�	�������<� �4"���33�����
	
�����@� ��������
�� �"������������"� �"��
,����	��� +��	���*���	�������+�<�

�
4"���"���� �"�	@�
��"��6���
+"������	
��=�)���3�����$��
����	
��33�����3���
�"��������	
�	����	
������	���<�
�
 ��

!����
� #�%""#/'	��%�����
	���'�
�
4"����"�����������?�������	������	���
<�
�

 #$%&�#'��0#"$���
�

)*4��  �(�������(�
������������+��5�
���*+����6 ���(������7
����#���������6���
�
4"���"����
�����������?�����	���	������������
�������	��3�����	��?�������	���
��� �"�� ���
��	��.������ �	� >.�
�3�	�	+� B�
�"� C	+�+���	�?� �"��"� "�
� ���	�
����
����
� �	� �"�� �
������	���� �+�	
�<� � $�� �
����
� �"��� ��� ����	��� "�
�
���	
�
��"����	
����	��"������������"���������	+��	��1���������������=��"��
��3���	��� ���@� ��� �"�� ��������� �	
� ���
��	�� ���������� "�
� ����� ��A
���
�
���	
��	�<�
�

5



�

���7&��� � ����������	
����
��	��������������������������������

4"���"�����������
��"����"���������"�
����	�������������
��������	����
���"���
�"���� ����� ����� 3�	�	����� ����������	�� �����	+� 3���� �"�� �������	
����	�<��
*��@����� ���	+� 
�	�����"� �"�� B�
�"� )�������	�� �	
� �"�� )��3����	��� �	
�
;�	�	������
��	���
��������������
�
�����������+������	���	
�������1<�
�
 �������������
��"���"��"�
���	���	���	��������	�����"������	��������	������
�"���� ���� 	�� �	
������	� ��� ��� �"��� ��
�
� ��� �33��
�
<� � ����� �	
������	� �3�
�33��
����������
�
���������	���	�����	+����+����<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����"�������	���3��������	������	���
<�
�

)*8�� �
�������� ������
����

�������
�
4"������������ �������
��� ��������"��"� ���� �
�� �"����������	�� �	
� ������3�
�"������������	���3��"������
	����.�+"������"����	+���"��"�������������"�
�
��� �"�� :��������  ��<� � 4"�� 0�������� �3� :�+��� �	
� #����	�	��� ���������
�	���

��
��"����������	
��
���	�
��"����������	���3��"�� ��<�
�
����������@�
�����������3�A
�����	���	
���
�������	������3������5�
�

•� �����3������	�������
+"���	��"���������3����������"����"����
	������
�
�
�"����� ��� �
�� �
�� ��� ��	
��<� � 4"��0�������� �3� :�+��� �	
�#����	�	���
��������� �
����
� �"��� ��������� �
�"� ��� .�+�������� ��� )��		�	+�
%
������	����	� �	
� 
������	� ��@�	+'� ��
�
� 	��� ��� ��	
���
� �
�� �	
�
�"��� ��������	����+�
��"��� �"����
	������
�
��"������"��"���������� ���
��
�
����	�����"���������<�

�

•�  ����������
+"���"��0�������?�������������"�����	����������������
	�
��������� ��
�
� ��� �������
� �		
����� �	
� ���� �
����
� �"���
��	��
������	� ���� ������ ���	+� +���	� ��� ��� "��� �"�� �������� ��
�
� ���
��	�+�
<��;����D�����=������������������"�����
������������	�"�+"���
�"�	��"�������������������	+��"����
	�����	��"��3����������<�

�

•� 8	� �����	��� ��� �� ������?�� A
�����	� ��� ��� "��� �������
�� ��� �����
�����	+���
����
�
���������	��
=��"��0���������
����
��"����"�����A
���
�
��	��
������	�����"��������	��"�	+� �	� �"��.�+
�����	�����+
�
�	����	�
�"��<�

�

•�  �������������
��"����������
	�������������"��"����������������D�����
�	��������3����	+��
���
�������	
����	
��"�������������
��	�������	�����=�
3��� �D������ �"�� :���
��� ��������� �	
� :�+��� ��������� ��	������=� "�
�
���	���+	�
=������
�
�	�������"����	+�
<��$�������"���3������	���	�
�
�"��� �"�� ��
	���� ���� ���������	+� ���� ����
����	�� ������
	�����<� � 4"��
0�������� ��	3����
� �"��� �3=� 3����D�����=� �"����
	���� "�
� ���� �� ��	������
3�����������=�������
	����+��
����
�
�	��� 3����� �"����
	���� �������@�
�"�����	�����<�

�

•� 4"��0���������3�)���	���"���0��������	���	
�)��3����	�����	3����
�
�"��=� ��� �"��� ���+�=� �"���� "�
� ���	� 	�� �	�������� �D������
� �	�
����
	����.�+"������"����	+��3�����	
���

���F+��
����	�$�����<��4"��

6



�

����������	
����
��	�������������������������������� ���72���

0�������� �3� :�+��� �	
�#����	�	������������ �

�
� �"��=� �	� �"����=� ����
���J���������������
�
�����"����
	������
�
�����33���
������

���<�

�

•�  � ������� �����
� �"��� �"����� "�� ��
�
� 	��� ���"� ��� ���� ���� ���������
��	���	���� �D����
� ��� ��

���=� "�� ����� ��
�
� 	��� ��	�� ��� �����	��
����
����	��������
	�����K��"��@�������+����	+��"������	�����+"�<��4"��
0���������3�)���	���"���0��������	���	
�)��3����	��������	
�
��"���
�"����
	���� ��
�
� 	��
� ��� ��� ������ �	� "��� ��� ���� +��	+� ��� 
�������"�
��+�������	� �	
� �3� �"�� �	��	���	� ���� ��� �����	�� ������	� ��������� ���	+�
�33���
�����������������=�"����
�
����������"��������
	�������
���
������
���"��������<�

�

•� ������������� �
����
� �"��� ���	� �3� �� ����
	���� +��
�� ���++���
� �"��
����
����	�� �������� 3��� �� �������� ������� 	��� ���
��� �	� �"��� ������
����
+��
���
		�	+��"���������<�

�
4"�� �"���� �"�	@�
� �"�� �33������ 3��� �"���� ����	
�	��� �	
� �����	���� �	
�
�	
�����
��"�����3
��"�����������	��"������
����
�
����"���3
�<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����"������������	���
<�
�

)*���  ��
���
(�����,��(
�����������9�������$��������$����
����������������
�
�������� �������
� �"�� ������� �3� �"�� )��3����	��� �	
� ;�	�	��� ���
��	��
�
������������ �"���� �"��"� �����
�
� �� �
������ �3� ���
��� ��� ��� ��@�	�
3�����
�����"���
������������3������	+��"���������	+��	��&��
�������<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����"������������	���
<�
�

)*��� $�������� �!��2�
(�����:���������-������
�� ��
�����
�
�������� �������
� �� ������� �3� �"�� 0������	��� 0�������� �3� )���	���"���
0��������	�� �	
� )��3����	��� �"��"� �����
�
� �	� 
�
���� �	� �"�� ���@�

	
����@�	� ��� �"�� ���	
�	+� ���
��	�� .������ �3� �"�� 6

+��<�  ���	���	� ����

���	�����"���������	
����	���"���"�
����	�����
����
��	��"���
������	����
�+�	
���	
����������+���
������	��
����"���3����"�������	�������
<�
�
4"���"���������	
�
� �"�����@��3� �"��.������#��
���	
=� �	�������
���=� �"��
�"�����3��"��.������#��
��3���"������@��	��"��$�
��	+�.���	
�� ���
	���	
�
��������3
	
�	+<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"���
�
%�'� �"�����@��3��"�����	
�	+��"����������3��"���

+������	���
K�
�
%�'� �"�� �������	
����	�� ��
�� �	� �������� �3� �"�� ��	�+���	�� ��E���

��	��������	�����������������������
<��
�

)+*�� $��������;
�<�,�
�������=��������
�
�������� �������
��� ��������"��"������
�
������������"��	�
�
�����	� �"��
���E����� �
���	���� 
	
������ ��� ����� �3� �"�� ���
��	�� ���@� ���+�����<� � 4"��

7



�

���7I��� � ����������	
����
��	��������������������������������

�33������������
��"��=��	��������3�3
�
������E����=���������3�&����2���������
�
����
�������
�3�����	��
������	�����������������3
�
��������	+<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"���
�
%�'� �"�����+������	��"���	
���

������E��������	���
K�
�
%�'� �"�� ���������� 3��� �
�	��3��	+� 3
��"��� ���E����� 3��� �	��
���	� �	� �"�� ���@�

���+����������+���
<�
�

)++�� $�������� �!��2�
(�:������'��
�(
�� ������������

����� ��
�����
�
�������� �������
� �� ������� �3� �"�� 0������	��� 0�������� �3� )���	���"���
0��������	�� �	
� )��3����	��� �"��"� �����
�
� �	� 
�
���� �	� �"�� ���@�

	
����@�	�����"�����	
�	+����
��	��.�������3��"��6������0����3���.���
�	���
�	
��������
�����
����3��"�����E���<�
�
4"���"�����3��"��.������#��
���D������
���	���	��"����"�����������
�������
�����
���	������������	�
�������	������
���	��������"��)
�����.������������
��� �������� 
������� 	
����
�� ��������� ��� �33������ ��� ����	+�� �� 
���<��
�������� �3� �"�� ���������� �	
�����
� �"��� �3� �"�� 
���	�������	� ���� 	���
3���"����	+=� �"��� ��
�
� ��A
���� �"�� ������	�� �33������ ��� �����
�� ��

���	�������	��3��"��������������3
�
��������	+��3��"�����������<�
�
 #$%&�#'	��4"����
�
%�'� �"�� ���@� �3� �"�� ���	
�	+� ���
��	�� .������ �3� �"�� 6������ 0���� 3���

.���
�	������	���
K�
�
%�'� �"������
����3��"�����E��������+���
K�
�
%1'� �"������������3����"���	+��	+���	�����	+��3�4������+���
<�
�

)+��� $��������&����"������ ��
�����
�
�������� �������
� �"�� ������� 3���� �"��C	����	��	�� �	
�C	������������
��	��
:��
� �������<� � �������� ����� �
����
� �"��� �"�� 
����������� ���� 	���
����"�	+� �"�� �	
� �3� ����	+�� �"��� ��
�
� ��� ��"����
� �"��
+"� �33����	��� �	
�
��������	+������
������������

����	<�
�
 ���������	
�����
��"��������
�
����"���3
���������������������3�������"����
�
����� ����	�
��� �"������@�����	������	+�

�������
<� �4"���33������
����
� �"���
�"������
�
������������3�����"���"��
��	��	
�.���
��������
������"����������
�����	+��3��"�����������<�
�
 #$%&�#'	� �4"��� �"�� ������� 3���� �"��C	����	��	���	
�C	������������
��	��
:��
������������	���
��	
��"�������	���������
��"����	�����+���
<�
�

8



�

����������	
����
��	�������������������������������� ���7����

)+)�� ���� %����� :�������� ��  ��
��������
�� (�
�� ���� ,��(
������� ����
9������� $�������� $����
�������� �� +�� $��������� �*+�� �� 0����� 
(�
 �(���������
�
4"�� ���������� �������
� �� �������	
����	� 3���� �"�� )��3����	��� �	
�
;�	�	������
��	���
�������������"��"���
+"���+�����	��������	
�����������
�3� ��3���	��<� � 4"�� ���������� �+���
� ��� ��	��
��� �"�� ����� ��� �� ������� �3�

�+�	���3����"�������	�������
���	��"���
������	�����+�	
�<�
�
 #$%&�#'	� �4"��� �"���
�����������?��4������3�.�3���	������ ������
����
���� �
�� ���  ���	
�D�  � ��� �"���� ��	
���� �	
� ��3����
� ��� �"�� ��	����
���	�
.������*��@�	+�#��
��3�����	��
������	<�
�

�������>���
�
%L���5��4"�������	+=�"���	+������	��
�����<11���=������
�����<1����'<�
�
�
�
�
�
%��+	�
'���ML�8::�.��C..B��8:C��
�"�����	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

9



APPENDIX A

PROPOSED REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE

PERFORMANCE & FINANCE SUB-COMMITTEE

The Performance and Finance Sub-Committee has the following powers and 
duties: 

1. To be the key driver of the scrutiny function’s work programme and the body 
responsible for monitoring the performance of the council and partners in 
relation to their stated priorities;

2. To consider/monitor, on an exception basis, the financial and service 
performance of the organisation; 

3. To consider/monitor the performance of the council’s partners;

4. To undertake specific investigation of identified ‘hot spots’ through Q&A, 
reports or challenge panels – subject to endorsement by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee; 

5. To refer ‘hot spots’ to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for more detailed 
investigation where necessary; 

6. To consider such urgent items as are appropriate – ad hoc, Councillor Calls 
for Action, area scrutiny. 

Deleted: the Local Area 
Agreement

Deleted: &

10



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

24 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

School Expansion Programme 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Catherine Doran 
Corporate Director Children and Families 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Christine Bednell, Children and 
Families Policy Lead 
Councillor Zarina Khalid, Children and Families 
Performance Lead 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out a summary of the school expansion programme, with 
particular reference to the funding of the programme and to the consultations 
undertaken. 
 
Recommendations:  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to note this report and offer 
comments. 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
Pages 11 to 18 

11



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
1. The local authority has a statutory responsibility to provide sufficient 

school places for its area.  There are several key strands to delivering 
sufficient school places as an increasing pupil population impacts across 
primary, secondary and special school provision.  The focus of this report 
is on the primary school expansion strategy.  The increased demand for 
places will impact on the secondary sector from 2016.  A report on the 
Special School Special Educational Needs (SEN) Placements Planning 
Framework was considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 11 October 2012. 

 
2. In July 2011, Cabinet agreed a school expansion programme as part of 

the School Place Planning Strategy.  The strategy aims to secure 
sufficient primary school places through the creation of additional 
permanent places, supplemented by planned bulge classes and 
contingency bulge classes, opened if required. 

 
Consultations about the expansion of schools 
3. Following this Cabinet decision, engagement and consultation processes 

about the permanent expansion of schools were undertaken. 
 
Borough-wide primary expansion programme consultation 
4. A borough-wide consultation was undertaken between 10 October 2011 

and 11 November 2011.  The consultation document set out the challenge 
for Harrow to meet an increased demand for school places and proposed 
the permanent expansion of 11 schools from September 2013.  This would 
be preceded by temporary bulge classes in a number of these schools 
from September 2012.  The proposals were developed following 
consideration of all schools and applying principles developed in 
consultation with a representative group of headteachers.   

 
5. The consultation documents were circulated widely to stakeholders and 

interested parties including all schools in Harrow, councillors, diocesan 
and faith organisations, neighbouring local authorities and interested 
parties including MPs and voluntary sector organisations.  Information was 
posted on the Harrow Council website and an item was included in the 
October edition of Harrow People. 

 
6. The outcomes of this consultation were reported to Cabinet on 15 

December 2011.  Cabinet gave its approval to move to the statutory 
process for permanent expansion of recommended schools. 

 
Statutory consultation about the expansion of nine schools 
7. Statutory consultations were held between 16 January 2012 and 27 

February 2012 about proposals to expand permanently nine schools on 
seven sites: 

Camrose Primary School with Nursery 
Cedars Manor School 
Glebe Primary School 

12



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

Marlborough Primary School 
Pinner Park Infant and Nursery School 
Pinner Park Junior School 
Stanburn First School 
Stanburn Junior School 
Vaughan Primary School 

 
8. Harrow Council distributed consultation information to a wide range of 

stakeholders in accordance with the Department for Education School 
Organisation and Competitions Unit guidance.  The distribution included 
neighbouring local authorities, local MPs, Councillors, unions, diocesan 
bodies, voluntary organisations, and Harrow Youth Parliament.  
Information about the statutory consultations and the primary school 
expansion programme was put on the Harrow Council website, together 
with a facility for online response to the consultations.  The schools 
distributed information and response forms to their school communities, 
including parents and local residents as they considered best, and 
arranged meetings and displays to enable discussion about the proposals.  
Officers attended consultation meetings at 8 of the schools. 

 
9. The outcomes of the statutory consultations were reported to Cabinet on 4 

April 2012.  Cabinet gave its approval to the publication of statutory 
notices to expand permanently the nine schools. 

 
Publication of statutory proposals 
10. Statutory proposals were published for a four week representation period 

from Monday 16 April to Monday 14 May 2012.  The statutory notices and 
complete proposals were distributed in accordance with the Department 
for Education School Organisation and Competitions Unit guidance.  
Public notices were posted on school gates, in libraries and published in 
Harrow Times.  Complete proposals were made available through the 
Harrow Council website and at the schools.  

 
11. No formal representations in relation to the statutory proposals were 

received by Harrow Council.  At its meeting on 20 June 2012, Cabinet 
approved the statutory proposals to expand permanently the nine schools.  
Following Cabinet’s decision, there is a legal duty to implement the 
proposals. 

 
Capital programme to effect the school expansions 
12. Capital building works will be needed at the schools proposed for 

expansion to be able to accommodate the additional children.   
 
13. Design work has been progressed, and the capital build programme for 

these schools will be progressed in phases over five years.  Planning 
applications have been submitted for the schools to enable the necessary 
accommodation to be in place when the schools expand.  There is a 
statutory planning process following the submission of the planning 
applications. 

 
14. As a preliminary to the submission of these initial planning applications, 

open meeting for parents and local residents were held.  These open 

13



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

meetings provided an opportunity for parents and local residents to view 
the design drawings and talk to representatives from the school, 
architects, constructors and Harrow Council.  Comments were invited for 
consideration by the project team, prior to finalising plans for the 
submission of the planning application.  The open meetings were held in 
July and September and were publicised to parents through the schools 
and to local residents via a leaflet distribution to the surrounding streets in 
accordance with the Planning Department’s practice when planning 
applications are submitted.  Meetings such as these are not a statutory 
requirement and were considered to be appropriate to convene for 
engagement with the school communities and local residents. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
15. The 2012/13 to 2014/15 Capital Programme included the cost of 

permanently expanding the nine schools, estimated at £26.2m. A break 
down of the reported indicative costs for each school and the funding is 
detailed in the table below. At this stage the figures are indicative figures 
provided for illustrative purposes. 

 

School 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Estimated Cost 
Based on Initial 

Feasibility 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Camrose 200                               200  

Cedars Manor   125                             125  

Glebe     1,000  500        1,500  

Marlborough     2,500  2,000 2,000  2,000  2,000  10,500  

Pinner Park I&J 700  400  1,000  750                      2,850  

Stanburn F&J     1,150  1,000        2,150  

Vaughan     4,500  4,400        8,900  

Total 10,050 8,425 3,000 2,750 2,000 26,225 

Funded By       

Capital Programme – DfE 
Grant 3,100 3,325 2,500 2,750 2,000 13,675 

Capital Programme – 
Council Funding 1,250 500 500 0  2,250 

Capital Programme - 
Other 3,300 4,600 0 0  7,900 

Carry Forward from 
2011/12 Programme 2,400 0 0 0  2,400 

 
16. There is considerable range in the cost to achieve permanent expansion 

which reflects the individual nature of the schools and their sites.  Some 
sites, due to capacity and stock condition, require minimal capital 
investment while others, such as Vaughan and Marlborough, would 
require significant rebuild to address capacity and condition. 

 
17. Department for Education (DfE) capital grants are currently anticipated to 

be insufficient to fund the expansion programme so council funding, 
totalling £2.25m, was allocated in the capital programme.  In addition the 
capital programme recognised the need for an additional £7.9m to fully 
fund the expansion programme, £3.3m anticipated in 2012/13 and a 

14



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

further £4.6m in 2013/14. It was anticipated that this would be met from 
additional funding streams including monies from planning gains.  

 
18. Since the capital programme was agreed, the DfE have announced an 

extra £2.64m of capital grant for Harrow in 2012/13.  In addition, through 
savings on schools projects and the reallocation of funding, there is 
potentially a further £1.4m available to be used to fund the Expansion 
Programme.  These funds go part way to addressing the £7.9m funding 
requirement and fully address the £3.3m required in 2012/13. 

 
19.  Furthermore three of the schools have been prioritised in the 

Government’s Priority School Building Programme (PSBP).  This 
programme is intended to address those schools in the worst condition 
nationally and the schools will either be rebuilt or have their conditions 
met.  These schools are Cedars Manor School, Marlborough Primary 
School and Vaughan Primary School. Currently only limited details of the 
Government’s plans for the PSBP are known so it is still too early to 
ascertain what impact it will have on the Primary Expansion Programme. A 
meeting with the Education Funding Agency, who are dealing with PSBP 
for the government, is planned for November in order to understand more 
about the programme and the implications it has on the School Expansion 
Programme projects and funding.  

 
Performance Issues   
20. Harrow is a high performing Local Authority and the large majority of local 

services are judged to be good or better by Ofsted.  Schools in Harrow 
perform well in comparison to national and statistically similar local 
authorities.  Most primary schools and all secondary schools are judged 
good or outstanding. 

 
21. The Schools White Paper and Education Act 2011 maintain a focus on 

driving up standards in schools, and place more of the responsibility with 
the schools directly for their improvement.  The role of the Local Authority 
in measuring performance and driving improvement is changing 
significantly and will reduce from its current level.  However, the Local 
Authority will maintain a strategic oversight and enabling role in local 
education, and is likely to retain some role in monitoring educational 
achievement and key measures such as exclusions and absence.  The 
exact nature of the respective roles and responsibilities is still emerging 
and is being discussed with the schools. 

 
22. Although the national indicator set has been abolished by the Department 

for Communities and Local Government, all of the key education indicators 
remain in place and continue to be reported to the Department for 
Education (DfE).  This situation remains under review and the DfE is yet to 
provide clear guidance on if and how educational performance will be 
judged at a borough level. 

 
23. There are implications for the provision of performance and management 

information to other services within Children’s Services where schools’ 
data is not transferred to and held by the Council.  This includes data from 
academies and other schools not taking up some interdependent SLAs.  

15



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

Data sharing agreements have been established with the 7 new 
academies to mitigate this risk. 

 
Environmental Impact 
24. The school expansion programme will have an environmental impact that 

will need to be considered.  Schools account for 50% of the council’s total 
carbon emissions (62% of emissions under the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment scheme – [CRC]) and will need to play a full part in reducing 
these emissions by 4% per annum, as set out in the council’s climate 
change strategy. 

 
25. The government’s position on whether the council or academies are 

responsible for emissions under the CRC is yet to be clarified. 
 
26. For those schools that are proposed for expansion, planning applications 

will be required and part of the application will be a travel plan.  Through 
this process and the development of the solutions for the schools, the 
impact of the additional pupils and their travel modes will be addressed. 

 
Risk Management Implications 
27. The directorate and corporate risk management implications for the 

council arising from school place planning are included on the directorate 
and corporate risk registers. 

 
28. The key risks for this programme are affordability and an over or under 

estimate of pupil growth.  
 
29. Several funding streams have been identified and the feasibility studies 

have identified the capital investment required to ensure that high quality 
school places will be established. 

 
30. The permanent expansions are planned to meet the minimum growth as 

indicated by the pupil projections.  Although an additional number of 
places or planning factor is usually applied the position will need to be 
monitored to avoid over provision.  Bulge classes will enable this to be 
managed as will the re-commissioning of accommodation in schools that 
have been larger previously. 

 
Equalities Implications 
31. Equalities Impact Assessments have been undertaken by officers and 

headteachers on the schools proposed for expansion.  The conclusions of 
these assessments are that the implications are either positive or neutral 
in that the expansion of the schools will help to ensure sufficient school 
places for the increasing numbers of children in Harrow. 

 
32. Harrow’s schools are successful and inclusive and provide a diversity of 

provision.  The school expansion programme will ensure sufficient school 
places for the increasing numbers of children in Harrow and will build on 
the successful provision that already exists in Harrow’s schools.  The draft 
Special Schools SEN Placements Planning Framework considers the 

16



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\6\AI00079672\$5eoc2kx0.doc 

potential increased demand for school places for children with disabilities 
arising from the growth in the school age population overall. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
33. These considerations will support the Council’s Corporate Priorities: 

• United and involved communities: A Council that listens and leads. 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 

 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:      9 October 2012 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Sarah Wilson √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:     9 October 2012  

   
 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact: Adrian Parker, Head of Education Strategy and School Organisation 
  adrian.parker@harrow.gov.uk  020 8736 6506 
 
Background Papers:  
None 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$z4z3ry2i.doc 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

24 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Academies School Conversions 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Catherine Doran 
Corporate Director, Children and Families and 
Andrew Trehern 
Corporate Director, Place Shaping 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Christine Bednell, Children and 
Families Policy Lead Member 
Councillor Zarina Khalid, Children and Families 
Performance Lead Member 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Annexe A: 
Cabinet Report October 2012, Academies School 
Conversions 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report presents a summary of the main matters arising since the 
conversion of 7 schools to academy status and the council’s response. 
 
Recommendations:  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to note this report and offer 
comments. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 19 to 36 

19



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$z4z3ry2i.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
1. Since August 2011, there have been 9 academy conversions in 

Harrow, 7 community high schools converted on 1 August 2011, one 
voluntary aided secondary school on 1 August 2012 and one voluntary 
aided primary school on 1 September 2012.  One community primary 
school is working with a sponsor to convert to academy status at a 
timescale yet to be decided.  

 
2. In addition, one all through free school, Avanti House opened in 

temporary locations in Harrow in September 2012.  The Department 
for Education (DfE) announced a further free school, the Jubilee 
Academy, will open in Harrow in September 2013. 

 
3. The conversion of schools to academy school status and the opening 

of new free schools has had considerable impact across the Council 
and to the community of schools.  There is growing experience of the 
process for different types of academy conversion including voluntary 
aided school conversion and sponsored academies.  

 
4. In the light of this experience, and anticipated further conversions, 

Cabinet considered a report on Academy School Conversions at their 
meeting on 11 October 2011.  

 
5. Cabinet was requested to agree a common approach to a number of 

matters to inform any future conversions.  The approach is informed by 
the Council’s position statement in relation to academy schools and 
supported by its approach to service level agreements; land and asset 
matters; children’s centres, and pension employer contributions. 

 
6. A copy of the Cabinet Report is provided at Annexe A. 
 
Council’s Position Statement on Academy Schools 
7. The position statement sets out how the Council will work with those 

schools converting to academy status and the approach it will adopt to 
approaches from potential free school providers. 

 
8. In the current Government context, further conversions and 

applications for new free schools are anticipated. The position 
statement sets out Cabinet’s expectations about new academies and 
their contribution to the education provision in Harrow and relationships 
with their local community. 

 
Land and Asset Issues 
9. In the event that any school does decide to become an academy 

school, the Academies Act (and related guidance) requires the Local 
Authority, the transferring school and the new Academy Trust to enter 
a transfer agreement.  The DfE has provided a model document which 

20



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$z4z3ry2i.doc 

covers issues such as transfer of non-land assets, contracts, staff and 
information as well as issues around warranties and indemnities 
expected in the transfer of a sizeable going concern. 

 
10. The DfE has also provided a model 125 year lease to transfer the 

school premises, as defined by the Act.  The Act requires the Local 
Authority to transfer any land and buildings used exclusively by the 
school.  In the event that the school and the Local Authority cannot 
agree on the terms of the lease, including the extent of the school 
premises, the Secretary of State has power to compel the transfer of 
land.  

 
11. The provisions in the Cabinet report allow for the Corporate Directors 

in consultation with relevant Portfolio Holders to deal with school by 
school site issues and enter into 125 year lease based on the DfE’s 
standard model. 

 
Service Level Agreements 
12. The Council has considerable expertise in providing specialist services 

to schools on a not for profit basis, sharing the benefits of increased 
economy of scale with all of our customers.  The Council is committed 
to maintaining a relationship with schools whatever their status and 
providing services.  However, there are implications for council 
provided services when schools transfer to academy school status and 
it is important to ensure that the financial interests of both parties are 
protected. The Cabinet report sets out the principles guiding set-up 
costs and rebates. 

 
Children’s centres 
13. There are currently 16 Children’s Centres in Harrow providing a range 

of early education, care and support services to young children and 
their families. Some centres are located on primary school sites and 
there are service level agreements with the schools.  In the event that 
schools with Children’s Centres convert to academy status, there will 
need to be consideration of the most effective approach to secure the 
continuation of services to the community and the lease arrangements 
on a school by school basis.  

 
Pension employer contributions 
14. A report was considered by the Licensing and General Purposes 

Committee on 10 July 2012 to establish a common approach in setting 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) employer contribution 
rates.  The Committee agreed that it would adopt the same approach 
applied by the Council to the seven academy high schools converted 
on 1 August 2011. This approach was adopted in the conversions 
commencing 1 August and 1 September 2012. 

 
Performance Issues 
15. Responsibility for school improvement and attainment transfers to the 

academy school on conversion.  However, the local authority will retain 
a responsibility for overall performance in the local area and will work 

21



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$z4z3ry2i.doc 

in partnership with all local schools to achieve this. If the Local 
Authority has concerns about the performance of an academy school 
in the local area, it has a duty to escalate concerns to the Secretary of 
State. 

 
Environmental Impact 
16. There are no specific environmental impacts regarding the transfer of 

the schools to academy status.  From the date of transfer the schools 
will be responsible for the management of the site which the Council 
would expect that they would continue on a responsible environmental 
basis. 

 
17. It should be noted that under current regulations, the Council retains 

responsibility for the carbon emissions of Academies under the Carbon 
Reduction Commitment – Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC).  The 
Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) has consulted on 
simplifying the CRC scheme but it is not clear what will be in the final 
proposals.  

 
18. At present there are no plans to include Academies in the Council’s 

RE:FIT (energy efficiency) programme.  However, if local authorities do 
retain responsibility for emissions from Academies, under CRC, the 
Council will need to consider how it will work with them to reduce their 
emissions.  

 
Risk Management Implications 
19. Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
 
20. Separate risk register in place?  No 
 
21. A risk register or issues log will be established for each transfer 

accordingly. 
 
Equalities implications  
22. Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No 
 
23. There are potential equalities implications in terms of service provision 

once schools have become academy schools (in issues such as 
admissions, exclusions and special needs for example) as well as the 
potential equalities implications in relation to any staff transfer. The 
Council and schools will work together closely to ensure that equality 
issues are identified and that Governing Bodies are made aware of 
these before making a final decision. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
24. This report contributes to the Council priorities: 

• United and involved communities:  A Council that listens and 
leads. 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 

22



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$z4z3ry2i.doc 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date 9 October 2012 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Sarah Wilson √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:  9 October 2012     

   
 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact: Adrian Parker, Head of Education Strategy and School Organisation 
  adrian.parker@harrow.gov.uk  020 8736 6506 
 
Background Papers: N/A 
 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Annexe A 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

11 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Academy School Conversions 

Key Decision: Yes 
[Impacts on all Wards] 
 

Responsible 

Officers: 

 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children and Families 
Andrew Trehern, Corporate Director  
of Place Shaping 
 

Portfolio Holders: 

 

Councillor Brian Gate, Portfolio Holder 
for Children, Schools and Families 
Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar, Deputy 
Leader of the Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Property and Major 
Contracts  

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
Academy schools and free schools are part of the Government’s policy to 
improve standards and increase choice for parents.  There are now 9 
academies in Harrow and one free school.  There are cross-council 
implications for the conversion process and this report sets out proposals to 
manage future academy school conversions. 

25



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 2 

 
Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: 
 

1. Agree the Council’s position statement on academy schools and free 
schools; 

 
2. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Children and Families in 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Children, Schools and 
Families to negotiate and sign a Commercial Transfer Agreement 
(CTA) with the school/sponsor in relation to assets, third party 
contracts, staffing and information transfer when schools convert to 
academy status; 

 
3. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Place Shaping in 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Property and Major Contracts 
to determine the terms of the land transfer based on the model 125 
year lease issued by the Department for Education (DfE), including the 
extent of the school premises and licences for land outside of the lease 
arrangements; 

 
4. Delegate authority to the relevant Corporate Director to negotiate and 

enter into contract for services with academies and out of Borough 
schools in accordance with the position statement. 

 

Reason:  (For recommendation) 
In accordance with the Government’s policy, it is expected that more schools 
in Harrow will consider and convert to academy school status. This report will 
ensure that the Council is able to manage conversions efficiently.  
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
1. Schools and proposers in Harrow have been receptive to the 

Government’s academy schools and free school programmes.  Since 
August 2011, there have been 9 academy conversions in Harrow, 7 
community high schools converted on 1 August 2011, one voluntary 
aided secondary school on 1 August 2012 and one voluntary aided 
primary school on 1 September 2012.  One community primary school 
is working with a sponsor to convert to academy status at a timescale 
yet to be decided.  

 
2. In addition, one all through free school, Avanti House opened in 

temporary locations in Harrow in September 2012.  The DfE 

26



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 3 

announced a further free school, the Jubilee Academy, will open in 
Harrow in September 2013. 

 
3. The conversion of schools to academy school status and the opening 

of new free schools has had considerable impact across the Council 
and to the community of schools.  There is growing experience of the 
process for different types of academy conversion including voluntary 
aided school conversion and sponsored academies. 

 
4. In anticipation of further conversions and free school proposals, this 

report sets out the Council’s position in relation to the academies 
programme and proposes the approach to any future school 
conversions to academy status. 

 

5. The proposed approach will contribute to the Council achieving its 
corporate priorities:  

• United and involved communities: A Council that listens and 
leads  

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need  
 
Options considered 
6. For the 7 high school conversions, authorities were delegated to the 

Corporate Directors of Place Shaping and Children’s and Families in 
conjunction with Portfolio Holders and for Property and Major 
Contracts and for Children, Schools and Families respectively to 
enable the land and transfer agreements to be entered.  Rather than 
present reports to Cabinet for each individual conversion it is 
proposed, that Cabinet agree the delegations for any future 
conversions.  If there are matters that are not resolved within the 
delegations then a report would be presented to Cabinet.  

 
7. It is also proposed that the Cabinet agree a common approach to a 

number of matters to inform any future conversions.  The approach is 
informed by the Council’s position statement in relation to academy 
schools and supported by its approach to service level agreements; 
land and asset matters; children’s centres, and pension employer 
contributions. 

 
Why a change is needed 
8. Given the Government’s policy to encourage schools to convert to 

academy status, it is expected that more schools will convert over time 
at different times and will be both converter and sponsored academies.  

 
9. An established cross council officer group ensures a corporate 

approach is adopted to support academy school conversions as there 
are council wide implications.  This is particularly, but not exclusively, 
where the local authority is the land owner and the staff employer. 
There are specific service impacts depending on whether there is 
continued service provision.  There are other matters that will arise in 
relation to individual schools, for example the location of a Children’s 
Centre. 

27



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 4 

 
10. The proposed delegations informed by the Council’s position statement 

and established approaches to wider matters will ensure a consistent, 
effective and timely approach is adopted to future conversions.  The 
reduction of reports to Cabinet will be a more efficient use of 
resources.  Updates on academy conversions will be included in 
quarterly monitoring reports to Cabinet. 

 
Council’s Position Statement on Academy Schools 
11. The following statement informs the Council’s strategic approach to 

working with schools converting to academy school status. 
 
12. The Council’s aspiration is for all schools to be members of the family 

of schools in Harrow and at the heart of their community.  The Council 
will support all schools, regardless of their status, and work in 
partnership with them for the best interests of the community of 
Harrow. 

 
13. In addition: 

• The Council will encourage all schools to work closely together in 
the best interests of Harrow people, residents, carers and 
students. 

• Fair and transparent school admissions arrangements are 
important to Harrow parents for all schools.  Harrow will seek to 
ensure that all admission arrangements following the School 
Admissions Code have these characteristics and that all schools 
contribute to and participate in the fair access protocol. 

• Harrow is committed to securing sufficient high quality school 
places for all Harrow children and expects all schools to 
contribute to this provision. 

• Elected members are committed to high quality learning 
opportunities for all Harrow pupils whatever their abilities or 
disabilities and expect all schools to contribute to providing these 
opportunities. 

• As democratically elected representatives the council will seek to 
be actively involved in supporting any new academy schools and 
will seek to appoint local authority governors. 

• To ensure high quality education provision the Council will hold all 
schools publicly to account for outcomes for the borough’s young 
people and will seek to secure data-sharing agreements to 
enable this. 

• The Council will work with Governing Bodies to ensure that due 
diligence is exercised in considering academy school status and 
will work with proposers seeking to establish new academy 
schools in the interests of Harrow’s communities. 

• The Council will encourage fair and wide consultation as part of 
the process to establish an academy school whether a new 
school or a converted school. 

• As an experienced and value for money provider of services for 
schools the council will work with academy schools to explore 
service provision opportunities. 

 

28



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 5 

14. This statement will also inform the approach the Council will adopt to 
any proposed free schools in the Borough. 

 
Land and Asset Issues 
15. In the event that any school does decide to become an academy 

school, the Academies Act (and related guidance) requires the Local 
Authority, the transferring school and the new Academy Trust to enter 
a transfer agreement.  The Department for Education (DfE) has 
provided a model document which covers issues such as transfer of 
non-land assets, contracts, staff and information as well as issues 
around warranties and indemnities expected in the transfer of a 
sizeable going concern. 

 
16. The DfE has also provided a model 125 year lease to transfer the 

school premises, as defined by the Act.  The Act requires the Local 
Authority to transfer any land and buildings used exclusively by the 
school.  In the event that the school and the Local Authority cannot 
agree on the terms of the lease, including the extent of the school 
premises, the Secretary of State has power to compel the transfer of 
land.   

 
17. As part of the transfer process of a school on council owned land, 

Legal Services will prepare site constraints reports for each school 
which will be used to decide on the land to be transferred in 
consultation with the schools. 

 
18. For the purpose of clarity, should Governing Bodies consider academy 

status and then decide not to transfer, then the authority given by 
Cabinet will be voided and those schools remain maintained schools 
as at present. 

 
19. In order to enable officers to progress with the necessary work and 

negotiations, Cabinet authority is sought prior to the schools making 
final decisions.  It is proposed that delegated authority is given to 
Corporate Directors in consultation with relevant Portfolio Holders to 
deal with site specific issues arising on a school-by-school basis.  By 
way of illustration, the type of local level land issues anticipated to 
arise for each school might include shared land use, community uses, 
access ways, how to deal with any caretakers houses, licences to use 
off site playing fields, children’s centres, additional provision for SEN 
and dealing with any restrictive covenants on the land. 

 
20. This delegation will enable the Council to enter into 125 year lease 

based on the DfE’s model lease. 
 
Service Level Agreements 
21. The Council has considerable expertise in providing specialist services 

to schools on a not for profit basis, sharing the benefits of increased 
economy of scale with all of our customers.  The Council is committed 
to maintaining a relationship with schools whatever their status and 
providing services.  However, there are implications for council 
provided services when schools transfer to academy school status and 

29



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 6 

it is important to ensure that the financial interests of both parties are 
protected.  

 
22. In general it is expected short-term SLAs will be considered where 

conversion is due on a set date part way through the year providing 
delivery costs can be altered accordingly.  Minor costs associated with 
the transfer of schools to academy status will be borne within normal 
operating budgets as would be the case when providing services to 
any organisation.  

 
23. The specific terms upon which services are provided to any converting 

school will be determined by the relevant Director for the service.  The 
following principles will apply to set-up costs and rebates. 

 
Set-up costs 

24. Where large or considerable set-up costs will be incurred by the 
Council for transferring academies and it is clear that these are not part 
of business as usual, it is proposed that one of two approaches below 
be adopted; 

 
• any set-up costs are calculated and communicated as an 

element of early discussions and that these are charged to 
schools before work starts, or 

• set-up costs are calculated and agreed in advance and are re-
paid over the term of a specific contract put in place for these 
provisions  

 
25. Services with considerable set-up costs would include Payroll, HR and 

others where the service specification requires amendments to IT 
systems. 

 
Rebates 

26. Harrow Council will not provide refunds or rebates for services that are 
de-commissioned part-way through the year.   

 
27. If the service is one that cannot be provided to an Academy, the 

Council will consider a rebate but will not be able to provide a rebate 
where costs are already committed for the whole term of the 
agreement. 

 
28. If the Council is forced to bear costs that are beyond the delivery of the 

SLA as a result of conversion, these will be charged to the schools in 
question.  In dealing with the academy transfer, potential costs will be 
communicated at an early stage to ensure that all parties are aware of 
respective requirements and that any need for expenditure or contracts 
is understood at an early point in the process.  This may create work in 
the short-term for both parties, but will avoid risks, doubt and costs in 
the medium to long term and protect the interests of all parties.  

 
29. There may be opportunities for services to be provided to schools in 

areas outside Harrow, enabling Harrow to become a centre of 
excellence for particular services.  Where these services can be 

30



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 7 

provided in accordance with the position statement and provide 
economy of scale savings, the recommendation is for the relevant 
Corporate Director to have delegated authority to negotiate and enter 
into contractual arrangements for services. 

 
Children’s Centres 
30. There are currently 16 Children’s Centres in Harrow providing a range 

of early education, care and support services to young children and 
their families.  In 2012, the Centres are organised into 4 hubs and the 
staff team are aligned to the Children’s Services operating model.  The 
Centres are central to the Children’s Services operating model and 
contribute to the delivery of Children’s Services priorities for health 
prevention, narrowing the gap, safeguarding and early intervention.  

 
31. Some centres are located on primary school sites and there are 

service level agreements with the schools.  In the event that schools 
with Children’s Centres convert to academy status, there will need to 
be consideration of the most effective approach to secure the 
continuation of services to the community.  There will also need to be 
consideration of the lease arrangements.  These will be on a school by 
school basis and will be informed in part by the location of the 
Children’s Centre on the school site. 

 
Pensions and Employer Contributions 
32. A report was considered by the Licensing and General Purposes 

Committee on 10 July 2012 to establish a common approach in setting 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) employer contribution 
rates.  The Committee agreed that it would adopt the same approach 
applied by the Council to the seven academy high schools converted 
on 1 August 2011: 

 
• Schools that apply for academy status will not be pooled with 

Harrow Council 
• A separate employer contribution rate for each academy be 

established 
• No stabilisation of contributions to be applied 
• A deficit recovery period of 20 years to be used to recover the 

share of the deficit allocation to each academy school 
• The 20 year recovery period to only be applicable for as long as 

the academy or DfE did not give notice of exiting its status 
• On receiving 7 years notice of exiting academy status the 

outstanding deficit be spread over the remainder of the notice 
period and the contribution rate be recalculated with effect from 
the start of the following financial year  

• The committee to reserve its position regarding the actuarial 
basis to be used for the recalculation. 

 
Financial Implications 
33. Currently Harrow schools are funded from the Dedicated Schools 

Grant (DSG) which is allocated to the Council based on pupil numbers.  
The majority of this funding is passed to schools; however £11.9m is 

31



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 8 

retained to fund central expenditure budgets, mainly specialist Special 
Educational Needs (SEN) provision.  
 

34. Academies are funded directly from central government.  An Academy 
will continue to receive its current school budget; however they will get 
additional funding, known as Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent 
Grant (LACSEG), to take account of the new responsibilities which 
they take on from the Local Authority.  The conversion of schools to 
academies have the following financial implications: 

 
• Clawback of Dedicated Schools Grant 

 Academies receive their funding directly from the Education Funding 
Agency (EFA).  To enable the EFA to make these payments the DfE 
reduces the DSG allocated to the Council.  Currently the DfE also 
claws back a proportion of centrally retained DSG in order to partly 
fund the LACSEG funding given to the Academies.  Statutory changes 
to school funding, effective from 2013/14, restricts the DSG that the 
Council can retain for central services.  Consequently all the funding for 
these services has to be passported to schools, negating the need for 
the DSG clawback. 

 
• Implications for services provided to schools through SLAs 
As detailed above, the Council currently provides services to schools 
through a range of SLAs.  If schools cease to purchase Council 
services there is a potential loss of income which will have both budget 
and service implications for the Council, especially where the Council 
employs staff to provide these services.  Experience to date suggests 
that the position varies between services depending on take up rates 
and the ability of services to reduce costs.  There may be opportunities 
for services to be provided to schools outside Harrow which may 
generate an income stream to support these services going forward. 

 
35. The Council receives funding through its general formula grant to fund 

certain school services such as school asset management, statutory 
and regulatory duties and certain education welfare services.  The 
government are currently consulting on how funding for these services 
should be allocated to local government and academies from April 
2013.  The proposals would result in the Council losing formula grant in 
respect of pupils in academies which would impact on overall council 
resources.  This risk is being managed as part of agreeing the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy.  

 
Performance Issues   
36. Responsibility for school improvement and attainment transfers to the 

academy school on conversion.  However, the local authority will retain 
a responsibility for overall performance in the local area and will work 
in partnership with all local schools to achieve this. 

 
Environmental Impact  
37. There are no specific environmental impacts regarding the transfer of 

the schools to academy status.  From the date of transfer the schools 
will be responsible for the management of the site which the Council 

32



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 9 

would expect that they would continue on a responsible environmental 
basis. 

 
38. It should be noted that under current regulations, the Council retains 

responsibility for the carbon emissions of Academies under the Carbon 
Reduction Commitment – Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC).  The 
Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) has consulted on 
simplifying the CRC scheme but it is not clear what will be in the final 
proposals.  

 
39. At present there are no plans to include Academies in the Council’s 

RE:FIT (energy efficiency) programme.  However, if local authorities do 
retain responsibility for emissions from Academies, under CRC, the 
Council will need to consider how it will work with them to reduce their 
emissions.  

 
Risk Management Implications 
40. Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
 
41. Separate risk register in place?  No 
 
42. A risk register or issues log will be established for each transfer 

accordingly. 
 
Equalities implications  
43. Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No 
 
44. There are potential equalities implications in terms of service provision 

once schools have become academy schools (in issues such as 
admissions, exclusions and special needs for example) as well as the 
potential equalities implications in relation to any staff transfer. The 
Council and schools will work together closely to ensure that equality 
issues are identified and that Governing Bodies are made aware of 
these before making a final decision. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
45. This report contributes to the Council priorities: 

• United and involved communities:  A Council that listens and 
leads. 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 10

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler ü   Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date:       18 September 2012 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Sarah Wilson ü   Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:      12 September 2012 

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    David Harrington ü   Divisional Director 

  
Date:      12 September 2012 

  Partnership, 
Development and 
Performance 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Andrew Baker ü   Divisional Director 

  
Date:      12 September 2012 

  (Environmental 
Services) 

 
 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Johanna Morgan, Education Professional Lead, Education 
Strategy and School Organisation, 020 8736 6841 
 
 
 
 

34



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\7\5\AI00079575\$r4gbffva.doc 11

Background Papers:   
Report to Cabinet 7 April 2011, Potential Conversion of Harrow’s High 
Schools to Academy Status – Land and Assets Issues 
 
Report to Licensing and General Purpose Committee, 10 July 2012, 
Academies – Employer Contribution Rates,  
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

  
 
NOT APLICABLE 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 

 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

24 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Youth Justice Plan and Youth Offending 
Improvement Plan 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Catherine Doran 

Corporate Director, Children and Families  

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Christine Bednell, Children and 
Families Policy Lead 

Councillor Zarina Khalid, Children and Families 
Performance Lead 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Cabinet Report October 2012 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to: 
 
(a) Note the contents of the Youth Justice Plan and forward any comments to 
Council for consideration; 
 
(b) note the Improvement Plan. 

 
Recommendations:  
Effective delivery of youth justice services is a statutory function. The Council 
must take political as well as corporate responsibility for ensuring that rapid 
improvements are secured. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 37 to 70 

37



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$s4ui2ijm.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Performance Issues 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Environmental Impact 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Equalities Implications 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 
 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Kamini Rambellas, Interim Divisional Director Tel: 020 8736 6978 
 
 

Background Papers:  
 
As set out in the Cabinet report. 

38



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$s4ui2ijm.doc 

 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

11 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Youth Justice Plan and Youth 
Offending Improvement Plan following 
Core Case Inspection of youth 
offending work  

Key Decision: No 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children and Families 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Brian Gate, Portfolio Holder 
for Children, Schools and Families 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Youth Justice Plan 2012/13  
 

 
 

41



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

Recommendations:  
 
Cabinet is requested to: 
(a) Note the contents of the Youth Justice Plan and Inspection Report; 
 
(b) Agree the Improvement Plan. 
 

Reason:   
 
Effective delivery of youth justice services is a statutory function. The Council 
must take political as well as corporate responsibility for ensuring that rapid 
improvements are secured. 
 

Section 2 Section 2 Section 2 Section 2 –––– Report Report Report Report    

The Council’s top corporate priority is the protection of vulnerable children and 
adults. Effective partnership arrangements between the YOT statutory 
partners and other stakeholders are essential to ensuring effective outcomes 
for children and young people who offend or are at risk of offending.  This 
report sets out the strategic plan for achieving this, the findings of the 2011 
inspection of the service and the plan for securing improvements. 

Options considered 

Effective delivery of youth justice services is a statutory function. Addressing 
the recommendations in the inspection report is crucial to ensuring this.  

Background  

Since 2000 there has been a requirement in the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 for Youth Offending Teams (YOTS) and their partnerships to produce a 
Youth Justice Plan setting out how the YOT will be resourced in the local 
area and the services which will be available in relation to the statutory 
primary aim of YOTs to prevent youth offending in the area.  

This YOT inspection programme which entailed visits to all Youth Offending 
Services in England & Wales over a three-year period, commenced in April 
2009. Its primary purpose has been to assess the quality of practice against 
published criteria in relation to assessment, interventions and outcomes. The 
inspectorate assesses this by selecting a sample of cases which are read by 
a team of inspectors and assessors who then conduct interviews with the 
practitioners in charge of those cases.  
 

42



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

HM Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) inspected Harrow’s Youth Offending 
Services in November 2011 and subsequently published a report on 21st 
December 2011 ( Core Case Inspection of youth offending work in England and Wales. 

Report on youth offending work in Harrow ).The purpose of the inspection was to judge 
“how often the Public Protection and Safeguarding aspects of the work were 
done to a sufficiently high level of quality” (HMIP inspection report London 
Borough of Harrow 2011, p.3) 

The inspectors judged that; 

“the Safeguarding aspects of the work were done well enough 45% of 
the time. With the Public Protection aspects, work to keep to a 
minimum, individual’s Risk of Harm to others was done well enough 
43% of the time, and the work to make each individual less likely to 
reoffend was done well enough 53% of the time.” 

 
Harrow’s inspection came towards the end of the three year cycle. It is has 
been widely recognised that the criteria for evaluating services have been 
raised and that a number a number of Youth Offending Service inspections in 
London in particular, have given rise to concerns about the London context. 
That being said, the results are of great concern placing Harrow significantly 
below both the national and London averages. 
 
The inspectors did comment favourably on the senior management response 
to the findings, noting that some had been anticipated and were being 
addressed. 
 
Whilst there is no statutory requirement to present the Youth Justice Plan to 
Cabinet, the Youth Offending Service is recognised as a high risk area for 
the Council and its partners in relation to capacity to respond to the 
improvement challenges required. In response to this, the partnership has 
put in place an improvement board to support the improvement work and 
ensure appropriate pace is maintained.  

A small number of YOT’s will undergo inspections in the current financial year 
before the new inspection regime come into effect in 2013/14, it is unclear as 
to whether Harrow YOT is likely to be one of those selected. 
 

Current situation 

 

The YOT Management Board is a multi-agency partnership accountable to 
the partnership through Safer Harrow. The membership of the board has 
recently been reviewed to ensure appropriately senior representation and it 
has been agreed that the YOT Management Board will now be chaired by the 
Divisional Director with lead responsibility for quality assurance to ensure 
robust challenge and scrutiny. The Management Board is responsible for the 
production and delivery of the Youth Justice Plan (Appendix1). 

 

 

43



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

The strategic aims for the YOT are set out in the plan as: 

 

• Integrated strategic planning and working with clear performance 
oversight to ensure effective delivery of youth justice services. 

• Effective partnership arrangements between YOT statutory partners 
and other stakeholders to generate effective outcomes for children and 
young people who offend or are at risk of offending. 

• Efficient deployment of resources to deliver effective youth justice 
services to prevent offending and re-offending by children and young 
people. 

• Ensuring sufficient capacity and capability to deliver effective youth 
justice services. 

 

Since the beginning of 2012, a time limited Improvement Board has been in 
place to oversee the implementation of the YOT improvement plan. This 
board reports to the YOT Management Board and is chaired by the Divisional 
Director, Targeted Services.  The improvement board is responsible for the 
delivery and implementation of the YOT improvement plan (Appendix 2) – 
post inspection, including driving up of national standards and improvement of 
quality and specific areas identified within the inspection. The improvement 
plan has recently been reviewed to ensure that there is a relentless focus on 
both performance outputs but more importantly on the quality of intervention 
and support to young people. 
 
A capable and competent workforce is critical to achieving the desired 
outcomes for children and young people and to achieve this, the following are 
being put in place: 
 

• Clear performance management expectations supported by regular 
supervision, appraisals and comprehensive training. 

• Appropriate use of the Council’s capability and conduct frameworks. 
• Coaching and mentoring support from a high performing YOT 

manager. 
• Ensuring the YOT is appropriately comprised to address the 

improvement challenges. 
 
In addition in the latter part of 2012 we will commission the Youth Justice 
Board and a well-recognised independent provider to undertake a 
comprehensive mock inspection including cross team case audit to assure 
ourselves that the necessary improvements are being made and where not, 
appropriate action is taken. 
 
 
 
 

 

44



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

Financial Implications 

 
The 2012/13 budget for the YOT service totals £790,000, of which £310,000 
is funded from Youth Justice Board Grant with the remaining £480,000 funded 
by council budget. To date the actions of the Improvement Plan have been 
delivered from within existing resources though the scale of the plan is 
creating pressures, especially in respect of management capacity.  
 
 

Performance Issues 
 
YOT performance is measured via a set of outcome indicators which are 
reported to the Youth Justice Board.  The most recent data is shown in the 
table below: 
 

IndicatorsIndicatorsIndicatorsIndicators****    

HarroHarroHarroHarro

wwww    

LondLondLondLondoooo

nnnn    

YOT YOT YOT YOT 

comparisocomparisocomparisocompariso

n groupn groupn groupn group    

EnglanEnglanEnglanEnglan

dddd    

First time offenders rate per 100,000 of 10First time offenders rate per 100,000 of 10First time offenders rate per 100,000 of 10First time offenders rate per 100,000 of 10----17171717 year  year  year  year 

oldsoldsoldsolds    

 population population population population            

Jan 11 - Dec 11  (latest period) 597 891 590 749 

Apr 10 - Mar 11 632 1017 720 876 

Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10 Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10 Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10 Use of custody rate per 1,000 of 10 ----17 17 17 17 year oldsyear oldsyear oldsyear olds    

populationpopulationpopulationpopulation            

Apr 11 - Mar 12  (latest period) 0.71 1.77 0.87 0.80 

Apr 10 - Mar 11 0.80 1.57 0.81 0.90 

Reoffending rates after 12 monthsReoffending rates after 12 monthsReoffending rates after 12 monthsReoffending rates after 12 months            

frequency rate - Jul 09 - Jun 10 cohort  (latest 

period) 0.90 0.98 0.81 0.96 

frequency rate - Apr 09 - Mar 10 cohort 1.04 0.95 0.81 0.92 
*note that due to validation and checking against police records this data becomes available 
significantly in arrears 

 
Harrow’s YOT continues to have comparatively good results on these 
indicators but faces challenges to reduce reoffending and use of custody, 
which have both increased in recent years, in line with other London LA’s.  
Engagement of young offenders in education training and employment is also 
monitored locally and is a priority for improvement. 
 
The 2011 inspection identified weaknesses in compliance with a range of 
standards in the following areas: 
 

• the quality and timeliness of assessments and plans 
• effective risk and vulnerability management planning 
• management supervision and oversight 
• to ensure regular home visits for all young offenders  
• measuring activity and outcomes to drive improvement 
• ensuring young people, parent and carers are an integral part of their 

intervention plans  

45



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

• victim awareness work is competed with all young people  
 
Addressing these issues is central to the Improvement Plan. 
 
 

Environmental Impact 

There are no environmental impact considerations in this report. 

Risk Management Implications 

See separate guidance notes. 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No  
  
Separate risk register in place?  No 
  
Identify potential key risks and opportunities associated with the proposal(s) 
and the current controls (in place, underway or planned) to mitigate the risks.   
 
See improvement plan 
 
 

Equalities implications 
 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No  
 
 
 
 

46



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

Corporate Priorities 
 
Please identify which corporate priority the report incorporates and how: 
 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler x  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 1 October 2012 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Helen Ottino x  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 3 October 2012 

   
 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: David Harrington x  Divisional Director 
  
Date: 1 October 2012 

  Partnership, 
Development and 
Performance 

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer 

Clearance 
 

 
 

   
 

Name: John Edwards x  Divisional Director 
  
Date: 2 October 2012 

  (Environmental 
Services) 

 

47



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\7\6\AI00079673\$k2i3x3ad.doc 

 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Kamini Rambellas, Interim Divisional Director 

Tel: 020 8736 6978  
 
 

Background Papers:   
Post-Ofsted Improvement Plan 
 

 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 

 

  
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
[Call-in applies] 

 

 

48



     

H
A

R
R

O
W

 Y
O

U
T

H
 O

F
F

E
N

D
IN

G
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

 

Y
O

U
T

H
 J

U
S

T
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 

  

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
 

     

H
a
rr

o
w

 Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 C

iv
ic

 1
, 
S

ta
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
H

A
1
 2

X
Y

  
te

l 
0
2
0
 8

7
3

6
 6

7
5
5
  

  
fa

x
 0

2
0
 8

7
3
6
 6

7
6
6

  
  

w
e
b
 w

w
w

.h
a
rr

o
w

.g
o

v
.u

k
  
  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
Y

o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

E
la

in
e
 N

e
w

c
o
m

b
e
  
(I

n
te

ri
m

) 

 

49



 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 Y
O

U
T

H
 O

F
F

E
N

D
IN

G
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

Y
O

U
T

H
 J

U
S

T
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

 S
in

c
e

 2
0

0
0

 t
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 D
is

o
rd

e
r 

A
c
t 

1
9
9

8
 f
o

r 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 T

e
a

m
s
 (

Y
O

T
S

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 P
la

n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

h
o

w
 Y

O
T

’s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
d

 i
n

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
im

 o
f 

Y
O

T
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

y
o

u
th

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
. 

 

 T
h

e
 Y

O
T

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 i
s
 a

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 S

a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
T

h
e

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 s
e

n
io

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 c
h

a
ir

e
d

 
b

y
 t
h

e
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
w

it
h

 l
e

a
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 r
o

b
u

s
t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 a
n

d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
. 
T

h
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 i
s
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 P
la

n
. 

 T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

 a
re

: 

• 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

• 
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 Y
O

T
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 g

e
n
e

ra
te

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 o
ff

e
n
d

 o
r 

a
re

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
. 

• 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
d

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 
a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

 

 H
M

 I
n

s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

 o
f 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
M

IP
) 

in
s
p
e

c
te

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0

1
1

 a
n
d

 s
u
b

s
e
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 2

1
s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
.T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 t

o
 j
u
d

g
e

 “
h

o
w

 o
ft

e
n

 t
h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 w

e
re

 d
o

n
e

 t
o

 a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
q
u

a
lit

y
” 

(H
M

IP
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 2

0
1

1
, 

p
.3

).
 T

h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

o
k
 a

 r
e
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 j
u

d
g
e

d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 o
ft

e
n

 P
u
b

lic
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 w

e
re

 d
o

n
e

 t
o

 a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

q
u

a
lit

y
. 

  
 

  

50



 

    T
h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
 s

p
lit

 i
n

to
 t
h

re
e

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 S

e
n

te
n
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
, 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
e

a
c
h

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e
d

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

, 
C

A
M

H
S

 
in

p
u

t 
d

e
c
lin

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

in
p
u

t 
a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
to

 e
x
a

m
p

le
 a

 f
e

w
. 

 A
ll 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
n

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 t

h
e

 
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

  

  T
h
e

 I
n

s
p

e
c
to

rs
 j
u

d
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t:

- 

“t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 w

e
re

 d
o

n
e

 w
e

ll 
e

n
o

u
g
h

 4
5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
im

e
. 

W
it
h

 t
h
e

 P
u
b

lic
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 
k
e

e
p

 t
o

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

, 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l’s

 R
is

k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

 w
a

s
 d

o
n

e
 w

e
ll 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 4
3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

im
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 e
a

c
h
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
le

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n
d

 w
a

s
 d

o
n
e

 w
e

ll 
e

n
o

u
g
h

 5
3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t
im

e
.”

 

 T
h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 a
 d

is
a

p
p
o

in
ti
n

g
 s

e
t 
o
f 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
h

o
rt

 c
o

m
in

g
s
 i
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 m
a
n

a
g
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
a

rm
 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 n

e
e

d
s
. 
 

 S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
’s

 h
a

v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
; 

th
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
t 

Y
O

T
 m

a
n
a

g
e

r,
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

 s
k
ill

e
d

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 g

a
p

s
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 a

 n
e

w
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 T
h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

e
c
u

re
 

c
lo

s
e

r 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
  

 S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
2

0
1
2

, 
a
 t

im
e

 l
im

it
e
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

. 
T

h
is

 b
o

a
rd

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
b
o

a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
O

T
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 -
p

o
s
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
ri
v
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

le
n

tl
e

s
s
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 b

o
th

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 b

u
t 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
tl
y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
o

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
      

51



 

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 i
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

 

• 
S

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

• 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

• 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g
 a

n
d

 V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 

• 
R

is
k
s
 t

o
 F

u
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

• 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

• 
K

e
y
 C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

• 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

2
-2

0
1
3

 

 1
. 

S
tr

u
c

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

to
 e

n
s

u
re

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

. 

 

S
a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
is

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

th
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
C

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d

 
D

is
o

rd
e

r 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
w

h
ic

h
 

is
 

jo
in

tl
y
 

c
h

a
ir
e

d
 

b
y
 

th
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o

m
m

a
n
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 
c
h

ie
f 

e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 
 
T

h
is

 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
ta

k
e

s
 
a

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 
to

 
C

ri
m

e
 
a
n

d
 
D

is
o

rd
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 
w

it
h

in
 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
S

a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o

n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

: 

 

• 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

• 
P

o
lic

e
 

• 
C

o
u

rt
s
 

• 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

• 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 /

 C
ri
m

e
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 

• 
H

e
a

lt
h

 

52



 

T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e
e

ts
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 a

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
w

it
h

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 A
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
a

re
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 

a
t 

a
 

s
e

n
io

r 
le

v
e

l,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 

v
ic

ti
m

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
/ 

p
a

re
n

ti
n
g
. 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 
Y

O
T

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 P
la

n
; 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
; 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
; 

a
p

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
; 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 p

u
b

lic
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g
 

th
e

 
re

c
e

n
t 

In
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

H
a

rr
o
w

 
Y

O
T
, 

a
 

“t
im

e
 

lim
it
e

d
” 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o
a

rd
 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 
c
re

a
te

d
 

to
 

o
v
e

rs
e

e
 

th
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 T

h
is

 b
o

a
rd

 s
it
s
 u

n
d

e
rn

e
a

th
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
w

it
h

 
le

a
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

. 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
o

f 
th

is
 

b
o

a
rd

 
c
o

n
s
is

ts
 

o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

n
d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 –

 p
o

s
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ri
v
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

. 
 

 A
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 

w
it
h

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 p

la
c
e
d

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

 w
it
h

in
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

it
ti
n

g
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 o

th
e
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 C

h
ild

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r.
  

T
h

is
 a

ls
o

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 a

 n
e

w
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 o
p

e
n

 p
la

n
 s

h
a

re
d

 o
ff

ic
e

. 
 T

h
is

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 w

it
h

 a
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
a

t 
is

 b
o

th
 l
e

a
n
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
b
o

th
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
  

 T
h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

, 
w

it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 l

in
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
it
s
 d

u
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 b

o
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
. 

 
 2

. 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 Y

O
T

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c

a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ta
k

e
 i
n

 d
e

li
v
e

ri
n

g
 l

o
c

a
l 

y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 g
e

n
e
ra

te
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 
a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 o

ff
e

n
d

 o
r 

a
re

 a
t 

ri
s

k
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

. 
  

 T
h
e

 Y
O

T
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 a
re

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
. 

 A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
–

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

o
a

rd
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 S

a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 f
e

e
d

s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
f 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 D

is
o

rd
e

r 
 In

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r'
s
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
P

o
lic

in
g
 w

it
h

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 

th
e

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
a

n
 P

o
lic

e
 i
s
 e

x
a

m
in

in
g
 a

ll 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 l
o
o

k
 a

t 
h
o
w

 t
h

in
g
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 b
e

tt
e

r,
 s

m
a

rt
e

r 
a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
a

l 
c
ri
m

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 v
is

io
n

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 
is

 e
x
a

m
in

in
g
 i
ts

 y
o

u
th

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 
 W

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
y
o

u
th

 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
i 
fa

c
e

te
d
 r

e
a

s
o
n

s
 w

h
y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
m

m
it
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
o
ft

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 

fa
m

ily
, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p

la
y
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
a

rt
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t
h

e
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

53



 

e
x
is

te
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
 g

a
n

g
s
te

r 
c
u

lt
u

re
 a

m
o
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
it
s
 y

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
a

n
g
 c

u
lt
u

re
 a

n
d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
v
io

le
n

c
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 t
o

 b
o

th
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

o
lic

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 p

ro
b

le
m

 s
o

lv
in

g
 i
n

 a
 t

ru
ly

 m
u

lt
i 
a

g
e
n

c
y
 w

a
y
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

o
s
e

 a
t 
m

o
s
t 

ri
s
k
, 

e
n

g
a

g
e

 a
n
d

 d
iv

e
rt

 a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 c
ri
m

e
. 

 C
o

re
 t

o
 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 P
o

lic
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

's
 T

e
a

m
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
o
u

s
ly

 s
e

e
n

 a
s
 

c
ru

c
ia

l 
in

 o
u

r 
jo

in
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
. 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 p
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 Y
O

T
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
Y

O
T

 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a

v
e

 
a

 
d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 
a

t 
E

a
rl
y
 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 
P

a
n

e
l,
 
J
o

in
t 

A
re

a
 T

a
s
k
in

g
 
a

n
d

 
C

o
 
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 
th

is
 
a

 
s
e
n

io
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
w

ill
 
a

tt
e

n
d

 
e

v
e

ry
 
L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
ild

, 
C

h
ild

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 
a
n

d
 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 –

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e

 h
e

ld
 a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 c
o

u
rt

s
 i
s
 h

a
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
rt

 U
s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 Y

o
u

th
 P

a
n
e

l 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

h
e

re
 Y

O
T

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
e
n

io
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
a

tt
e

n
d
, 

L
e

g
a

l A
d

v
is

o
rs

 a
ls

o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 Y

O
T

 M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
. 

  

T
h
e

 T
ri
a

g
e

 a
n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 P

V
E

 a
n

d
 m

e
n

to
ri
n

g
 s

it
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
O

T
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 T

h
e

 
Y

IS
P

 w
a

s
 p

la
c
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 b
e

s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 f

o
c
u

s
e
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
v
e

d
 

v
e

ry
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l.
  
T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 a

n
d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 r

e
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 T
ri
a
g
e

. 
 T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 a

n
d

 E
IS

 a
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
h

a
re

d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

e
rs

 s
ta

ff
, 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
ro

u
b

le
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
-l
o

c
a

te
d

. 
  

 O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

e
w

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 

is
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

is
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 c
a

ll 
u

p
o

n
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
. 

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 H
O

P
E

 (
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

),
 V

ic
ti
m

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 O
a

s
is

 (
C

o
u

n
s
e

lin
g
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
).

 

S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
lin

k
s
 
w

it
h

 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 
a

re
 
a

ls
o

 
in

 
th

e
 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 
o
f 

b
e

in
g
 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
in

v
o

lv
e

s
 
u

ti
lis

in
g

 
Y

O
T

 
p

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
e

d
 w

o
rk

 s
u

c
h
 a

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 l

e
a

d
 o

n
 M

A
P

P
A

, 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 Y
O

T
 t

o
 P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

, 
a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 a

 k
e

y
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 O
ff
e

n
d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e

m
e

. 
 

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 l
o

c
a

lly
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 M

u
lt
i 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 H

u
b

 (
M

A
S

H
) 

a
 m

u
lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y,

 

m
u

lt
i 
d

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

e
a
m

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ll 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
u

n
n

e
le

d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h

 c
o

u
rt

. 
  

 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

, 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 

o
v
e

rs
e

e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 t

e
a

m
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 Y

O
T
. 

 

54



 

S
o

m
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
c
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 Y

O
T

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ta
k
e

 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

lo
c
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

s
o

m
e

 a
re

 b
e

in
g
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

e
d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 –

 t
h

is
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

e
a

m
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 C

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 N
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 Y

O
T

; 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 o
ff

e
n

d
 o

r 
a

re
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

L
A

C
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
o
ff

e
n

d
s
. 

 3
. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 a
n

d
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
d

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 
re

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
. 

  

In
 a

ll 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 H

a
rr

o
w

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 T

e
a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d

 b
y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e
 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n
d

 s
o
m

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 

  
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

y
 1

3
%

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t
o

 2
0

1
2

/1
3
. 

In
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
te

p
p

e
d

 i
n

 t
o

 c
o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

. 
 

  In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
, 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

 k
in

d
 d

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
  

A
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 

th
e

re
 i

s
 n

o
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i

n
to

 t
h
e

 Y
O

T
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 g

ra
te

fu
l 

to
 

th
e
m

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

. 
  

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e

 s
e
c
o

n
d
e

d
 s

ta
ff

, 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

a
ll 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 o
f 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
k
ill

e
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
, 

m
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
h

o
 a

re
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 T
a

b
le

 2
. 

 O
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 s

k
ill

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
s
e

c
to

r 
a

s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 B
o
a

rd
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 m

a
in

ly
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

, 
p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
, 

V
ic

ti
m

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

s
e

lin
g
 h

a
v
e

 a
ll 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 

y
e

a
r.

  
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

t 
th

is
 m

o
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 a

s
 a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

 
 D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
-1

2
 a

 n
e

w
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 m

o
d
e

l 
w

a
s
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

in
g
le

 f
ro

n
t 

d
o
o

r 
fo

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 r
e

a
lig

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
. 

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 

fo
re

fr
o

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
e
s
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 

  
 

 S
o

m
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
a

s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
a

s
e
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

 m
o

re
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 Y

O
T

 c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
s
ib

lin
g
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 

w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 
fu

tu
re

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
. 

 
 In

 2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
2

 H
a

rr
o

w
 h

a
d

 a
n

 o
ff

e
n

c
e
 r

a
te

 p
e

r 
1

0
0
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

1
7

, 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 1
9

 i
n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 T
h

is
 c

o
m

p
a

re
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
ff

e
n
c
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
2

5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 ‘
Y

O
T

 f
a
m

ily
’ 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

2
1

. 

55



 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

a
b

le
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u

d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0

1
2

-1
3

 a
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

, 
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
0

.0
6

.1
2

. 
 

 
T

a
b

le
 1

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

  
S

tr
e

a
m

 
T

y
p

e
 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

 
T

o
ta

l 
(c

a
s

h
 

a
n

d
 i

n
 k

in
d

) 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

 
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 
C

a
s

h
 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 
in

 k
in

d
 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 
T

o
ta

l 
 

 

2
0

1
2

-
1

3
 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

Y
O

T
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
C

h
a

n
g

e
  

In
c

re
a
s

e
/D

e
c

re
a

s
e

 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 
B

o
a

rd
  

T
o
ta

l 
g
ra

n
t 

 
(A

ll 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

in
g
 

fe
n

c
e
d

 g
ra

n
ts

 
n

o
w

 c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 i
n

 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 
G

ra
n

t)
 

 
3

5
1

,5
8

9
 

 
2

5
.6

%
 

 

3
0

7
,2

8
2

 
 

0
 

 
3

0
7

,2
8

2
  

 
2

3
.1

%
 

 
-1

3
%

 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

3
.8

%
 

0
 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

3
.8

%
 

0
%

 

P
o

lic
e

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

6
6

,2
3

1
 

5
.0

%
 

2
2

,0
0

0
 

4
4

,2
3

1
 

6
6

,2
3

1
 

5
.0

%
 

0
%

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

0
.8

%
 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

0
 

1
0

,0
0

0
 

0
.8

%
 

0
%

 

 
C

A
H

M
S

  
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

0
,0

0
0

 
1

0
,0

0
0

 
0

.8
%

 
- 

 
S

e
x
u

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

%
 

- 

 
U

n
it
a

s
 

4
,0

0
0

 
0

.3
%

 
4

,0
0
0

 
0

 
4

,0
0
0

 
0

.3
%

 
0

%
 

D
ru

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 
G

ra
n

t 
2

0
,0

0
0

 
1

.5
%

 
0

 
2

0
,0

0
0

 
2

0
,0

0
0

 
1

.5
%

 
0

%
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
M

a
in

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
4

4
6

,3
3

8
 

3
3

.6
%

 
4

8
3

,5
3

8
 

0
 

4
8

3
,5

3
8

 
3

6
.3

%
 

8
%

 

L
o

c
a

l 
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
s
t 

 

3
8

0
,1

1
5

 
2

8
.6

%
 

3
8

0
,1

1
5

 
0

 
3

8
0

,1
1

5
 

2
8

.6
%

 
 

0
%

 

T
o

ta
l 

 
1

,3
2
8

,2
7

3
 

1
0

0
%

 
1

,2
0
6

,9
3

5
 

1
2

4
,2

3
1

 
1

,3
3
1

,1
6

6
 

1
0

0
%

 
0

 %
 

 

56



 

 
T

a
b

le
 2

 -
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 (
a
s

 a
t 

3
0

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
2

) 
 

P
o

s
t 

T
it

le
 

N
o

 o
f 

p
o

s
ts

 
N

o
 f

il
le

d
 

S
o

u
rc

e
/E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
H

o
u

rs
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 

G
e

n
d

e
r 

Y
O

T
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
1

 
1

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
F

/T
 

A
 

F
 

Y
O

T
 S

n
r 

P
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
 

1
 

1
  

2
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
L

o
c
u
m

  
F

/T
  

A
  

W
 

M
 

F
 

C
a

s
e

 w
o

rk
e

r 
3

 
  

2
  

 
1

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

 
 4

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
 L

o
c
u
m

 X
  

4
  

F
/T

 
F

/T
 

F
/T

 
F

/T
 

F
/T

 
F

/T
 

W
 

W
 

B
 

B
 

B
 

W
 

F
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

F
 

M
 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

1
 

1
 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 

F
/T

 
W

 
M

 

IS
S

P
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
1

 
1

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
F

/T
 

B
 

F
 

R
e

fe
rr

a
l 
p

a
n

e
l 
c
o

-
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
1

 
1

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
F

/T
 

W
 

F
 

V
ic

ti
m

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
  

1
 

1
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

r 
 -

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 
0

.5
 

W
 

F
 

P
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

1
 

1
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
- 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 
0

.5
 

W
 

F
 

R
e

p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
e

r 
1

 
0

.5
 p

o
s
t 

 
1

 
v
a

c
a

n
t 

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
1

 
0

.5
 

 

W
 

 
M

 
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 w

o
rk

e
r 

1
 

1
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
0

.6
 

W
 

M
 

P
o

lic
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
1

 
1

 
P

o
lic

e
 

P
/T

 
W

 
M

 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e

 
w

o
rk

e
r 

1
 

1
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

r 
–

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

  
P

/T
  

W
 

F
 

C
o

u
n

s
e

llo
r 

1
 

1
 

S
e

lf
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
  

0
.3

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

B
 

F
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

1
 

1
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
F

/T
 

A
 

F
 

A
d

m
in

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

3
 

2
 

1
 a

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e

n
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
  

1
 

0
.5

 
0

.5
 

W
 

W
 

A
 

F
 

F
 

F
 

T
O

T
A

L
  

2
0

.5
 

2
3

 
 

 
 

 

 

57



 

 In
 2

0
1

1
-1

2
 H

a
rr

o
w

 u
n

d
e

rw
e

n
t 

a
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
it
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 p
la

c
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 Y
O

T
 

(m
e

n
to

ri
n

g
, 

P
V

E
 

a
n
d
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
) 

o
v
e

r 
in

to
 

th
e
 

E
a

rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 

T
h
e

 
N

e
w

 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 

m
o
d

e
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

fa
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 j

o
in

e
d

 u
p

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 m

o
re

 r
o
b

u
s
t 

e
x
it
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
m

in
g
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

rd
e

r,
 w

h
e

re
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

2
0
1

2
-1

3
 Y

O
T

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 E
IS

 m
a

n
a
g
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d
e

l 
p

ro
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
  

 In
 
a

d
d

it
io

n
 
to

 
p
a

id
 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

th
e

 
Y

O
T

 
is

 
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

 
in

 
b

e
in

g
 
a
b

le
 
to

 
c
a

ll 
o

n
 
o

v
e

r 
5

0
 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 
a

n
d

 
s
e

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
. 

 
T

h
e

s
e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 m

a
k
e

 a
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
O

T
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

• 
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 I
S

S
 o

rd
e

rs
 d

u
ri
n

g
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 a
t 
w

e
e

k
e
n

d
s
 

• 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 p

a
n

e
ls

 f
o

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
o

rd
e

rs
 

• 
A

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

d
u

lt
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
o

lic
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 

4
. 

R
is

k
s

 t
o

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
 T

h
e

 Y
O

T
 h

a
s

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

 
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 Y
J
B

 g
ra

n
t 

w
h

ile
 i

n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r 
m

o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 s
u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

, 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p

la
n

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
  

 C
a

p
a

c
it

y
 

 T
h
e

 t
o
ta

l 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 w

a
s
 4

1
0

 i
n

 2
0
1

0
-1

1
 a

n
d

 3
5
6

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

. 
 T

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

w
a

s
 1

6
2

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 a
n

d
 1

6
4

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

. 
 D

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

2
 y

e
a

rs
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 

(F
T

E
) 

to
 t

h
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 i

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 1
2

7
 F

T
E

 f
ro

m
 J

a
n

 –
 D

e
c
 2

0
1
1

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d
 w

it
h

 1
5

4
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r.

 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

 v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
 T

ri
a

g
e

 a
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

a
rr

e
s
t.

 
T

h
is

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 
a

p
p

lie
s
 
to

 
a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 
p
e

o
p

le
 
a

rr
e

s
te

d
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 
fo

r 
a
 
n
o

n
-v

io
le

n
t 

o
ff

e
n

c
e
, 

a
n

d
 
le

a
d

s
 
to

 
a

 
3

-m
o
n

th
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

b
a

il.
  

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e

a
d

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
a

il 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 n

o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

 
 

58



 

In
 2

0
0
9

-2
0
1

0
, 

re
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 f

ig
u

re
 w

a
s
 1

7
0

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-2
0

1
1

 t
o

 2
6

9
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

n
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
 t

o
 2

5
9

 i
n

 2
0
1

1
-

2
0

1
2

. 
  

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 a
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 p

a
tt
e

rn
 i

n
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e

n
te

n
c
e

s
. 

 I
n

 2
0
0

9
-2

0
1

0
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 p

e
r 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 1

0
 o

u
t 

o
f 

3
7

3
 

(2
.6

8
%

),
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

-2
0
1

1
 t
o

 1
7

 o
u

t 
o
f 

2
6

9
 (

6
.0

9
%

),
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

n
 2

0
1
1

-2
0
1

2
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 1
5

 o
u

t 
o
f 

2
5

7
 (

5
.8

4
%

).
  
 

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 A
 n

e
w

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 c
o

n
s
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
o
n

e
 t

e
a
m

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 o
n

e
 s

e
n

io
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r.
  

A
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

n
io

r 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
p

o
s
t 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 c
re

a
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
, 

a
n

d
 d

ri
v
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t,

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 b
e

in
g
 a

 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
 T

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

v
e

 a
ll 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

c
e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

. 
It

 i
s
 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 
th

a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 w
h

a
t 

is
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 l
o

c
a

lly
 t

o
 Y

O
T

 c
lie

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 M

a
g
is

tr
a

te
s
 C

o
u

rt
 c

lo
s
e

d
 i

n
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 C
o

u
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 B

re
n

t 
C

o
u
rt

 n
o

w
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 a

s
 

W
ill

e
s
d

e
n
 C

o
u

rt
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

 t
o

 f
o

rg
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
r 

Y
O

T
’s

 
(B

re
n

t 
a

n
d

 B
a

rn
e
t)

 w
it
h

 w
h

o
m

 w
e

 n
o

w
 s

h
a

re
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

b
e

in
g
 i
n

 a
 c

o
u

rt
 b

a
s
e

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

w
a

y
 m

e
a

n
s
 s

ta
ff

 s
p

e
n

d
 m

o
re

 
ti
m

e
 t

ra
v
e

lli
n

g
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n

s
 t

im
e

 a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t.
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 t
h
e

 C
ro

w
n

 P
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
C

P
S

) 
h

a
v
e

 
n

o
w

 g
o

n
e

 d
ig

it
a

l,
 m

e
a
n

in
g
 a

ll 
p

a
p

e
rs

 a
re

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
, 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 Y
O

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 C

P
S

 p
a

p
e

rs
 i
n

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
u

rt
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
, 

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
s
 a

 “
te

e
th

in
g
” 

is
s
u

e
 a

t 
C

o
u

rt
 U

s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 b

y
 t

h
o

s
e

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

rt
. 

 T
h
e
 

c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

rt
 h

a
s
 i

m
p

a
c
te

d
 t

h
o

s
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 m
a

g
is

tr
a

te
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
u

rt
 s

ta
ff

; 
w

h
ic

h
 o

ft
e

n
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 
c
o

u
rt

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 
a
 
lo

t 
s
m

o
o

th
e

r.
 
 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
Y

O
T

 
s
ta

ff
 
a

re
 
n
o

w
 
b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 
to

 
b

u
ild

 
n

e
w

 
re

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 
w

it
h

 
s
ta

ff
 
a
n

d
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

ri
n

g
 Y

O
T

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 r

e
v
is

it
 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
 a

n
d
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
n

 c
o

u
rt

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 
 

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 

T
h
e

 e
th

n
ic

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p
u

p
ils

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
l 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 
 I
n

d
ia

n
 a

n
d

 W
h
it
e

 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 p
u
p

ils
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 t
h
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

s
 a

t 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

1
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 p
u

p
ils

 f
ro

m
 2

8
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 t
o

 1
9

%
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
, 
a

n
d

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
u

p
ils

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
A

s
ia

n
 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 f

ro
m

 1
3

.1
%

 i
n

 2
0
0

6
 t
o

 1
9

.5
%

, 
fo

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 o
th

e
r 

W
h
it
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

ro
u

p
 f

ro
m

 4
.2

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 t
o
 

7
.3

%
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a

rt
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

s
 a

t 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

. 

59



 

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n
 h

a
lf
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 s

p
e

a
k
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

s
 a

 f
ir
s
t 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

 (
4
4

.8
7

%
) 

a
s
 a

t 
J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
E

n
g
lis

h
 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 G
u

ja
ra

ti
, 
T

a
m

il 
a

n
d

 S
o

m
a

li 
c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 s

p
o

k
e
n

. 
 I

n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 e

th
n

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s
 M

id
d

le
 

E
a

s
te

rn
 a

n
d

 E
a

s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e
a

n
 l
a
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 (

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 R

o
m

a
n

ia
n

) 
a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 y

e
a

rl
y
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 p

u
t 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 b

o
th

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
t 
a

 t
im

e
 w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

im
in

is
h

e
d

. 
 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 i
t 
h

a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

in
te

rp
re

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 
 

5
. 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 2
0

1
1
-1

2
 

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
s
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

 H
a

rr
o

w
 h

a
s
 c

h
a

n
g
e
d

 r
a

p
id

ly
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
b

o
v
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 b

o
th

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 T

e
a

m
. 

  Y
O

T
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 v
ia

 a
 s

e
t 
o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
 T

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p
a

ra
ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

: 
 In

d
ic

a
to

rs
*

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
*

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
*

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
*    

H
a
rr

o
w

H
a
rr

o
w

H
a
rr

o
w

H
a
rr

o
w

    
Lo

n
d

o
n

Lo
n

d
o

n
Lo

n
d

o
n

Lo
n

d
o

n
    

Y
O

T
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 
Y

O
T
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 
Y

O
T
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 
Y

O
T
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 

g
ro

u
p

g
ro

u
p

g
ro

u
p

g
ro

u
p

    
E
n

g
la

n
d

E
n

g
la

n
d

E
n

g
la

n
d

E
n

g
la

n
d

    

Fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e
 o

ff
e
n

d
e
rs

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0

Fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e
 o

ff
e
n

d
e
rs

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0

Fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e
 o

ff
e
n

d
e
rs

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0

Fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e
 o

ff
e
n

d
e
rs

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0

- ---1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
    

  
  

  
  

Ja
n

 1
1
 -

 D
e
c 

1
1
  
(l
a
te

st
 a

va
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

) 
5
9
7
 

8
9
1
 

5
9
0
 

7
4
9
 

A
p

r 
1
0
 -

 M
a
r 

1
1
 

6
3
2
 

1
0
1
7
 

7
2
0
 

8
7
6
 

U
se

 o
f 

cu
st

o
d

y 
ra

te
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
 

U
se

 o
f 

cu
st

o
d

y 
ra

te
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
 

U
se

 o
f 

cu
st

o
d

y 
ra

te
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
 

U
se

 o
f 

cu
st

o
d

y 
ra

te
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 o

f 
1
0
 - ---

1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
1
7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
    

  
  

  
  

A
p

r 
1
1
 -

 M
a
r 

1
2
  
(l
a
te

st
 p

e
ri

o
d

) 
0
.7

1
 

1
.7

7
 

0
.8

7
 

0
.8

0
 

A
p

r 
1
0
 -

 M
a
r 

1
1
 

0
.8

0
 

1
.5

7
 

0
.8

1
 

0
.9

0
 

R
e
o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a
ft

e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s

R
e
o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a
ft

e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s

R
e
o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a
ft

e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s

R
e
o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a
ft

e
r 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s    

  
  

  
  

fr
e
q

u
e
n

cy
 r

a
te

 -
 J

u
l 
0
9
 -

 J
u

n
 1

0
 c

o
h

o
rt

  
(l
a
te

st
 a

va
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

) 
0
.9

0
 

0
.9

8
 

0
.8

1
 

0
.9

6
 

fr
e
q

u
e
n

cy
 r

a
te

 -
 A

p
r 

0
9
 -

 M
a
r 

1
0
 c

o
h

o
rt

 
1
.0

4
 

0
.9

5
 

0
.8

1
 

0
.9

2
 

*n
o
te

 t
h

a
t 
d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
o
lic

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 s

o
m

e
 d

a
ta

 b
e
c
o

m
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 

 H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 Y
O

T
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

p
a

ra
ti
v
e

ly
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 b

u
t 
fa

c
e

s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 r
e

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 
u

s
e

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

d
y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
o

th
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
 A

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
b

o
v
e

, 
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
re

 C
a
s
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
 

60



 

 In
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1

- 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 c

ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 t

ri
a

g
e

 t
e

a
m

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 8

2
 R

e
fe

rr
a

ls
, 

4
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
ri
a

g
e

 b
u

t 
la

te
r 

d
is

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
, 
a

n
d
 

8
 r

e
fu

s
e

d
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
. 
 F

ro
m

 t
h

e
 7

0
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
te

 o
f 

1
0

0
%

 i
n

 r
a

te
 o

f 
n

o
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 
  

 O
th

e
r 

m
e
a

s
u

re
s
 
o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e
 
h

a
v
e

 
b
e

e
n

 
v
a

ri
a

b
le

 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 
p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 
R

a
te

s
 
o
f 

Y
o

u
n

g
 
O

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 
in

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 
T

ra
in

in
g
 
a

n
d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
(E

T
E

) 
h

a
v
e

 d
ro

p
p

e
d
 f

ro
m

 7
6
.2

%
 i
n

 2
0
0

9
-1

0
 t
o

 6
7

.7
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2
. 

 H
o

u
s
in

g
, 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

m
a

in
e

d
 s

ta
ti
c
 a

t 
a

 r
e
a
s
o

n
a
b

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l.
  

V
ic

ti
m

 e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 o
f 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 
  

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 j
o

in
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 m

o
n

th
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

n
 d

a
ta

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
ro

le
 i
n
 

th
e

 Y
O

T
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
s
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
. 

  
  

 

6
. 

 K
e

y
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 a
n

d
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

 K
e

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
: 

• 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 u
s
e

 o
f 

c
u
s
to

d
y
  

• 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
  

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
ra

te
 o

f 
F

T
E

 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

• 
R

o
b

u
s
t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
  

 K
e

y
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
: 

 

• 
C

o
re

 C
a

s
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
v
e

ry
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
, 

v
ic

ti
m

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t,

  

• 
T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
  
n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 

• 
S

ta
ff

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n
p

u
t 
a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

  

• 
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
Y

O
T

  

 

61



 

7
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

2
 /
 2

0
1
3

 

 H
a

rr
o

w
 Y

O
T

’s
 a

im
 f
o

r 
2

0
1
2

-1
3

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 Y
O

T
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

 a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

a
fe

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 b
y
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
, 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

b
y
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

S
ta

ff
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

, 
m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 r

o
le

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
to

 a
n

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

th
a
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 

p
la

c
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 o
ff
e

rs
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

; 
re

g
u

la
r 

te
a
m

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
e

a
m

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 d
ri
v
e

 u
p
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
le

 a
s
 a

 t
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

s
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

re
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 t
o

 b
e

 

re
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 b
e

 o
p

e
n
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
h
a

re
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 b
y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
g
ro

u
p

 s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
e

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
. 

  

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft
e

r 
c
o

u
rt

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 c

le
a

r 
o

n
 w

h
o

 h
a

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
s
e

 a
n
d

 o
ff
e

rs
 t

h
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

fo
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

s
 a

 m
u

lt
i 
d

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 t

e
a

m
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
n

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

n
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

. 
  

 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
e

m
p

la
te

s
 c

re
a

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
c
y,

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 s
ta

ff
 t
o

 a
s
k
 t

h
e

 “
ri
g
h

t”
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
lic

it
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
n

d
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 t
o

 a
tt
e
n

d
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
tt

e
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 r

is
k
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 n

e
e

d
e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
th

 o
ff
e

n
d

in
g
 t

e
a

m
 –

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 

th
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
a

re
a

s
. 

 

 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
2

/1
3

:  

1
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
. 

 

2
. 

D
ri

v
e

 u
p

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
  

3
. 

D
e

liv
e

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

4
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

 p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 

5
. 

W
o
rk

 i
n

 a
 m

o
re

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 N

e
w

 O
p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 M

o
d

e
l 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 n
e

e
d
s
 a

re
 m

e
t 

5
. 

B
u

ild
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

k
ill

s
 

6
. 

 M
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g
 i
n

to
 Y

O
T

 m
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

o
a

rd
 

62



 
1

 

 
    

H
A

R
R

O
W

 Y
O

T
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
 

  

T
h
is

 p
la

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 9

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
H

M
IP

 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1

0
-1

2
 a

re
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 Y

O
T

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

b
o
a
rd

. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 b

o
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 t
e
a
m

. 
  

 B
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

e
t,
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 v

a
lid

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 b
e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 i
s
 v

a
lid

. 
 A

 d
a
ta

 c
le

a
n
in

g
 d

a
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

o
o
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 F

ri
d
a
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
9
th

 –
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
e
e
k
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 8

th
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 Y

O
T

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 
  

            

63



 
2

   

 

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
  

 

A
C

T
IO

N
 

 

O
U

T
P

U
T

 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

  

 

L
E

A
D

 

 

B
A

S
E

L
IN

E
  

   1
) 

 A
 t

im
e
ly

 a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
, 
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
t,
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 s

ta
rt

s
 

    1
) 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 1
5
 

d
a
y
s
, 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
 

 
- 

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
. 
  

 
- 

A
ll 

s
ta

rt
 A

s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 

Y
J
B

  
 

- 
A

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 

  9
5
%

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
ts

 
o
n
 t

im
e
  

  9
5
%

 o
f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

o
n
 t

im
e
  

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m

 
 Y

O
T

 C
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

  

   1
 )

 A
 t

im
e
ly

 a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
, 
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
t,
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 s

ta
rt

s
 

   2
) 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 

d
a
y
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

  

 
- 

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
in

g
  

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

M
P

  
 

- 
A

ll 
R

M
P

’s
 t

o
 b

e
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 

Y
J
B

 t
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 Q

A
’d

/ 

    9
5
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

R
M

P
’s

 o
n
 t

im
e
 

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 Y
O

T
 C

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

    

   1
) 

A
 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
, 
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
t,
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 s

ta
rt

s
 

  

   3
) 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
V

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 d

a
y
’s

 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 

in
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
h
a
rm

. 
 

 
- 

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
in

g
  

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

M
P

  
 

- 
A

ll 
V

M
P

’s
 t

o
 b

e
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 

Y
J
B

 t
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 Q

A
’d

 

    9
5
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

V
M

P
’s

 o
n
 t

im
e
  

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 Y
O

T
 C

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

64



 
3

 

 1
 )

 A
 t

im
e
ly

 a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
, 
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
e
t,
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 s

ta
rt

s
 

      2
 )

 S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

, 
a
 t

im
e
ly

 a
n
d
 

g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l’s

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

a
n
d
 R

is
k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

 t
o
 o

th
e
rs

 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

, 
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 

  

   4
) 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
a
re

a
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
n
g

th
s
 

a
n
d
 a

re
a
’s

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

- 
T

o
 u

s
e
 Q

A
 t
o
o
l 
b
y
 

Y
J
B

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

rt
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
a
n
d
 d

ip
 s

a
m

p
le

 
 - 

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
re

n
d
s
 o

f 
te

a
m

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
 

u
p
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 1

-
1
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
. 

 
 

- 
T

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 W

h
a
t 
d
o
 

y
o
u
 t

h
in

k
 f

o
rm

s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

Y
O

T
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 

s
ta

rt
 a

n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

c
a
n
 

in
to

 s
y
s
te

m
 

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 t
o
 Q

A
 a

n
d
 

a
u
d
it
  

    Y
J
B

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
o
o
l 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 
“g

o
o
d
” 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

  

Y
O

T
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

 3
 )

A
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
a
b
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

w
ill

 n
o

w
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

, 
to

 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

 l
e
s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
-

o
ff

e
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 a

n
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 R

is
k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

 t
o
 

o
th

e
rs

. 
 

 

  5
) 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 

s
m

a
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
re

-o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
  
 

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

ta
ff

 
o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 t
o
 Q

A
 a

n
d
 

a
u
d
it
  

 
- 

F
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

d
e
v
is

e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 y

o
u
th

 
p
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

 

   M
o
n
th

ly
 s

ta
ff

 
o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
  

 

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

                    

65



 
4

 

- 
T

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

  
  

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 –

 
F

ir
s
t 

R
M

P
 t

o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 2

0
th
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

   4
 )

 T
h
e
 p

la
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 s
e
ts

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 g
o
a
ls

, 
re

a
lis

ti
c
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

 
  

   6
) 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 e

x
it
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 p

o
s
t 

c
o
u
rt

  
o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
-

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
 

 
- 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

Y
O

T
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 N
E

E
T

 a
t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 c

o
u
rt

 o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
n
 E

E
T

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

o
rd

e
r?

 

 

- 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

w
it
h
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 

re
g

u
la

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 h

a
d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 /
 

Y
O

T
 

  

  D
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 a
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

N
E

E
T

 
y
p
  

 T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

  P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 Y
O

T
 c

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
 Y

O
T

 m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

                

  5
 )

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
ts

 /
 

c
a
re

rs
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 

m
e
a
n
in

g
fu

lly
 i
n
v
o

lv
e
d
 i
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
im

e
ly

 u
s
e
 

o
f 

s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

le
a
rn

in
g
 s

ty
le

s
 

 

   7
) 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
p
a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 a

n
 

in
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

h
a
t 

d
o
 

y
o
u
 t

h
in

k
 f

o
rm

s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

Y
O

T
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
c
a
n
 i
n
to

 s
y
s
te

m
  

 
- 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
s
s
e
ts

 
s
c
o
ri
n
g
 2

 o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

fa
m

ily
 /

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

o
n
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

a
g

e
  

 
- 

T
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

e
th

o
d
 o

f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

  1
0
0
%

 o
f 
W

h
a
t 

d
o
 y

o
u
 t

h
in

k
?
 

F
o
rm

s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
n
g

o
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
 

 1
0
0
%

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
re

 
c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
. 
  

 

  Y
O

T
 C

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
 Y

O
T

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  

66



 
5

 

w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

  

 
- 

T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
 

“i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

a
c
k
” 

fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

s
ty

le
s
 

 

 

 6
 )

 O
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
b
y
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
, 

R
is

k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

, 
to

 
o
th

e
rs

, 
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

. 
 

    8
) 

E
n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

 
- 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 

Y
O

IS
 

 
- 

E
n
s
u
re

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

o
c
c
u
rs

 o
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 

b
a
s
is

 w
h
e
re

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 Y

O
IS

  
 

- 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 a
 m

o
n
th

 a
re

 
e
s
c
a
la

te
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

   1
0
0
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
  

  Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 A
g

re
e
d
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
  

 1
0
0
%

 s
ta

ff
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g

 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 w

it
h
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 

 6
 )

 O
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
b
y
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
, 

R
is

k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

, 
to

 
o
th

e
rs

, 
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

. 
 

 9
) 

 E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
c
o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

 
- 

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
u
n
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
o
n
 

a
ll 

c
o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
in

g
 o

f 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
 - 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 t
o
 

re
c
o
rd

 i
n
 Y

O
IS

 
 

 1
0
0
%

 o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
  

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

7
. 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
fu

l 
h
o
m

e
 v

is
it
s
 a

re
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 

1
0
) 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 h

o
m

e
 v

is
it
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
u
rt

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
lf
a
re

 

  
  
  
- 

  
 E

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

 h
o
m

e
 

v
is

it
 u

n
le

s
s
 r

is
k
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 n

o
t 
to

 

6
0
%

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

h
o
m

e
 v

is
it
s
. 

 

Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
Y

O
T

 c
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

 

67



 
6

 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 R

is
k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

 
to

 o
th

e
rs

 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
rt

 o
rd

e
r 

 

(M
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 

h
o
m

e
 v

is
it
s
) 

 
- 

H
o
m

e
 v

is
it
s
 a

re
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 Y

O
IS

 
   
  
 -

  
  
 S

ta
ff

 o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 F
ir
s
t 

h
o
m

e
 v

is
it
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 
2
8
 d

a
y
s
 

   

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

   8
 )

 S
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 v

ic
ti
m

s
  

   1
1
) 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 v
ic

ti
m

 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
e
te

d
 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

 

 
- 

E
n
s
u
re

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
a
g

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

to
 v

ic
ti
m

 w
o
rk

e
r 

 
 

- 
T

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

e
th

o
d
 o

f 
d
ir
e
c
t 
/ 

in
d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 w
it
h
 

v
ic

ti
m

 
 

- 
F

o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 P
S

R
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 v

ic
ti
m

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

 

  T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 1
0
0
%

 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
ta

k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 

s
o
m

e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 

V
ic

ti
m

 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 /

 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 w

o
rk

. 
 

 1
0
0
%

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 

c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
  

  

 Y
O

T
 c

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

  
 V

ic
ti
m

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

  
 Y

O
T

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

        

9
) 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

th
e
 R

is
k
 a

n
d
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
n
e
l 
a
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

b
y
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

1
2
) 

T
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 R

is
k
, 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
o
n
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

  
  
  
- 

  
 T

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 

  
  
  
  
  
  
fo

r 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
n
e
ls

 
th

a
t 
is

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

   
  
 -

  
  
 A

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

b
y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

 &
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
n
e
l 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 (

c
ri
te

ri
a
 –

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 R

is
k
 o

f 
H

a
rm

 i
s
 m

e
d
iu

m
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

 W
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

T
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n
th

ly
 R

is
k
 &

 
V

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
n
e
ls

 

Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 Y
O

T
 c

a
s
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 –

 
fi
rs

t 
R

M
P

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 2

0
th
 S

e
p
 

2
0
1
2
 

 

68



 
7

 

a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 o

r 
V

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 
 A

ll 
M

A
P

P
A

 e
lig

ib
le

 c
a
s
e
s
, 

a
ll 

k
n
if
e
 c

ri
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 

 1
0
)E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

L
A

C
  
 

  

 1
3
) 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L

A
C

 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 
o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 /
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
  

 

 
- 

T
o
 w

ri
te

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
/ 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
  

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

IN
 /
 C

L
A

 /
 

a
n
d
 Y

O
T

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 
a
re

a
’s

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 A
d
u
lt
, 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
ri
s
o
n
 v

is
it
s
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
v
e
rl
a
p
 

in
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

  
 

- 
T

o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 

L
A

C
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
to

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
p
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 p
a
n
e
l 
 

  

  M
o
n

it
o
r 

L
A

C
 

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
  

 Y
O

T
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
  

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

  M
e
e
ti
n
g

 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 –

 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
s
t  

2
0
1
2
. 

      

 1
1
)T

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
k
ill

e
d
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

d
e
fe

n
s
ib

le
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

 1
4
) 

T
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
k
ill

e
d
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
  

 

 
- 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

     
- 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

tw
o
 d

a
y
 t

ra
in

in
g

 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f;
 a

n
d
 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
/ 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

  T
o
 b

e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

fo
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

N
o
v
 2

0
1
2
  

 Y
O

T
 C

a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
  Y

O
T

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

 A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 

a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 L

S
C

B
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 
tr

a
in

in
g
  

  D
a
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

fo
r 

a
 t
w

o
 d

a
y
 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
/ 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

–
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
9

th
 

69



 
8

 

 
- 

S
ta

ff
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 (

in
 h

o
u
s
e
) 

o
n
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 (

D
u
e
 i
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 )

a
n
d
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 (

L
e
g

a
l 
A

id
, 

S
e
n
ta

n
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

P
u
n
is

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

O
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 A
c
t 

2
0
1
2
 

(L
A

S
P

O
 –

 N
o
v
 2

0
1
2
) 

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

/ 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

p
la

n
 

a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
6
th

  
4

th
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

–
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
u
rt

 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

a
tt

e
n
d
  

  1
2
)T

o
 c

re
a
te

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 b

e
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

le
a
rn

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

  1
5
) 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ri
s
k
s
 /
 n

e
e
d
s
 /
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

 
tr

a
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 s
tr

iv
in

g
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  

 
- 

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

o
c
k
 

a
u
d
it
 /
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 Y

J
B

 
/ 

H
M

IP
 /

 Y
O

T
 

 - 
3
 w

e
e
k
ly

 g
ro

u
p
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

 
- 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 w
h
e
re

 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
la

n
 i
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
a
s
e
  

  T
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
re

fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
e
re

 
ri
s
k
s
 /
 n

e
e
d
s
 /
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
s
 a

re
 

c
le

a
r 

fr
o
m

 c
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r 

to
 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

 Y
J
B

 
 Y

O
T

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 Y

O
T

 C
a
s
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 

 

 

70



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date: 

 

24 October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Shaping a Healthier Future for NW London – 
Harrow’s response to consultation by NHS NW 
London 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap - Divisional Director, Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Health and Social Care – Councillor Krishna 
James and Councillor Vina Mithani 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Harrow Council’s response to the Shaping a 
Healthier Future consultation 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out Harrow Council’s response to the Shaping a Healthier Future 
consultation by NHS NW London.  The work was led by scrutiny members and 
scrutiny’s response has been adopted by the Executive-side.  As such it was 
submitted to NHS NW London as a Harrow Council response. 

 
Recommendations:  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the response to NHS NW 
London. 
 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 71 to 82 

71



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\6\AI00079605\$1h0f2gdf.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Shaping a Healthier Future for North West London 
Shaping a Healthier Future is a programme set up by NHS NW London to 
improve healthcare for the two million people living in NW London.  The 
programme is being led by the eight clinical commissioning groups and other 
clinicians across NW London who have identified the case for change which 
highlights the inconsistencies and failings of the current system and sets out 
objectives for a better, healthier future for NW London.  

The aim of the programme is to ensure that the right care is delivered in the 
right places and a number of detailed proposals for how services could be 
organised differently in the future have been developed.  These proposals 
form the basis of a full public consultation which ran from 2 July to 8 October 
2012.   

This report attaches Harrow Council’s response to the consultation.  This was 
led by scrutiny members and informed by evidence gathered through 
Harrow’s participation on the NW London Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, consideration of the Shaping a Healthier Future pre-consultation 
business case and discussions held at the special meeting of the Health and 
Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee on 19 September.  These discussions 
explored the impact of the Shaping a Healthier Future proposals in Harrow 
and the consultation process, and involved representatives from: 

• NHS NW London’s Shaping a Healthier Future programme 
• North West London Hospitals Trust 
• NHS Brent & Harrow 
• Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group 
• Harrow Local Involvement Network 
• Harrow Council  
 
The website for the Shaping a Healthier Future programme is at: 
http://www.healthiernorthwestlondon.nhs.uk/ 
 
 

Financial Implications 
The costs of delivering this project were met from within existing resources. 
 

Performance Issues 
There are no performance issues specifically associated with this report. 
 

Environmental Impact 
There is no specific environmental impact associated to this report. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
There are none specific to this report. 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No 

72



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\6\AI00079605\$1h0f2gdf.doc 

Separate risk register in place?  No 
 

Equalities implications 
As part of its work programme, the JOSC considered the equalities impact 
assessment work conducted for the Shaping a Healthier Future programme 
and whether equality implications had been given adequate consideration on 
the proposals for change. 
 
Issues around equalities are also addressed in Harrow Council’s response to 
the consultation, as attached. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
The Shaping a Healthier Future programme and associated JOSC relate to 
the Council’s corporate priorities of: 
• United and involved communities: A council that listens and leads 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not applicable. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact:  Nahreen Matlib, Senior Professional Scrutiny, 020 8420 9204, 
nahreen.matlib@harrow.gov.uk  
 

Background Papers: The website for the Shaping a Healthier Future 
programme is at: http://www.healthiernorthwestlondon.nhs.uk/  
 

  

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 

Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning:  Alex Dewsnap 
Email: alex.dewsnap@harrow.gov.uk   Telephone: 0208 416 8250     

Harrow Council, PO Box 57, Civic Centre, Station Road, Harrow, HA1 2XF    
email: info@harrow.gov.uk   web: www.harrow.gov.uk 

 

 

Michael Lockwood 
Chief Executive 

 
 

 
 
 
FREEPOST 
SHAPING A HEALTHIER FUTURE CONSULTATION 

 

 

  

            

     

 Monday 8 October 2012 
 
 

Shaping a Healthier Future for North West London – 
Response from Harrow Council 

 
 
We write in response to the consultation conducted by NHS North West London on 
‘Shaping a Healthier Future’.  We will also be sharing this response with the NW 
London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) that has been 
established to scrutinise the proposals and of which Harrow is a member.  We are 
clear that this response represents a Harrow Council perspective (on behalf of 
scrutiny and the Executive) and as such does not preclude any other 
groups/organisations/individuals from our organisation or the wider local health and 
social care economy from submitting their own views.  We acknowledge that as a 
JHOSC has been established to consider Shaping a Healthier Future (SaHF), NHS 
bodies are not obliged to respond to individual scrutiny committees’ comments.  
 
Our comments are drawn from consideration of the Pre-Consultation Business Case 
(PCBC), evidence gathered at the Harrow Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee special meeting held on 19 September 2012 and our participation through 
the NW London JHOSC.  
 
We welcome the opportunity to comment on proposals that will undoubtedly affect 
the healthcare for Harrow residents and our comments reflect upon both the SaHF 
proposals and consultation process.  The large majority of Harrow residents use 
acute services at Northwick Park Hospital and to a lesser extent Central Middlesex 
Hospital (as part of the same trust - NW London Hospitals Trust).  As part of all the 
options put forward for consultation, Northwick Park Hospital retains its services as a 
major hospital and Central Middlesex Hospital becomes a local hospital and elective 
care centre.  We note the current plans to merge NW London Hospitals Trust and 
Ealing Hospital Trust and therefore the option to downgrade Ealing Hospital to a local 
hospital will also have ramifications for Harrow’s local hospital trust. 
 
 

75



Page 2 of 7 
 

SHAPING A HEALTHIER FUTURE - CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
Harrow scrutiny held a special meeting of its Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee on 19 September to discuss the impact of the SaHF proposals in Harrow 
and the consultation to date1.  The meeting was attended by: 

· Dr Mike Anderson – Medical Director, Chelsea & Westminster Hospital (on 
behalf of the SaHF programme) 

· Tina Benson – Director of Operations, North West London Hospitals Trust 

· Marcel Berenblut – Head of Communications, NHS Brent & Harrow 

· Dr Amol Kelshiker – Chair, Harrow Clinical Commissioning Group 

· Julian Maw – Chair, Harrow Local Involvement Network 

· David McVittie – Chief Executive, North West London Hospitals Trust 

· Paul Najsarek – Corporate Director, Community Health & Wellbeing, Harrow 
Council  

· Javina Sehgal – Borough Director, NHS Brent & Harrow  
 

We extend our thanks to those colleagues who attended the meeting and contributed 
to the discussions which we found extremely valuable. 
 
On the consultation processes adopted by the SAHF programme, we appreciate the 
various means that have been employed to reach out to residents within each 
borough, for example roadshows, attendance at public meetings, inserts into local 
newspapers, summary documents in key community venues, as well as online 
access to the consultation.  These are especially important given the complex 
messages that the programme is aiming to achieve public understanding of.  
However we also note that consulting over the summer period on changes as 
substantial as these is never ideal especially given the uniquely busy summer 
London has experienced in 2012.  We hope that extending the consultation period to 
14 weeks enabled the programme to achieve a large response rate from across all 
the boroughs affected by the proposals.  We have yet to see confirmation of 
attendance figures for each consultation event, including online hits/responses, and 
would ask for this when available. 
 
 

SHAPING A HEALTHIER FUTURE – MAIN ISSUES FOR HARROW 
RELATING TO PROPOSALS FOR CHANGE 
 
We wish to highlight the following points on the SaHF programme to NHS NW 
London for consideration as part of its consultation.  These points are drawn from 
consideration of the Pre-Consultation Business Case (PCBC), evidence gathered at 
the Harrow Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee special meeting held on 
19 September 2012 and our participation through the NW London JHOSC. 
 
The main issues for Harrow relate to: 

· Implementation of the out of hospital strategy 

· Poor patient satisfaction with primary care in Harrow 

                                            
1
 The minutes to this meeting can be found at: 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1037&MId=61335  

76



Page 3 of 7 
 

· Capacity and infrastructure at Northwick Park Hospital 

· Travel, transport and access issues for Northwick Park Hospital 

· Workforce issues in the short and medium term 

· Financial position of NW London Hospitals Trust 

· Long term feasibility of proposed changes 

· Communicating with the public 
 
 
Implementation of the out of hospital strategy 
The out of hospital strategy will be the foundation to ensuring changes in acute 
services succeed – the need to transform primary, community and social care 
because of current variations in quality and access will include needing to ensure that 
the capacity and capability exists within the services to operate 24/7 at a high level 
and this includes implications for social care services.  The delivery of the out of 
hospital transformation underlies the implementation of each option as it delivers a 
reduction in acute activity and delivers efficiencies and productivity improvements 
and thereby creates additional capacity in receiving major hospital sites.  
 
We have heard from colleagues in our local NHS as well as through our work on the 
JHOSC that one of the biggest risks of the proposed service reconfiguration is if it did 
not happen or was implemented ‘half-heartedly’.  Our CCG has told us that major 
issues for Harrow in primary care concern access to GPs and timely diagnostics and 
the avoidance of unnecessary hospital admissions.  We also know from talking to our 
residents that health services need to change – current services are too often 
inconsistent in their levels of quality and accessibility, health inequalities are 
exacerbated and the financial position of local health trusts (NW London Hospitals 
Trust and NHS Harrow) is simply unsustainable.  This all also impacts greatly on the 
provision of social care within the borough. 
 
We do ask that health partners consider how they will deal with situations where the 
out of hospital strategy does not work or does not deliver fewer people to acute 
services.  It is better to consider the risks as early on in the process as possible.  
There will inevitably be risks to health and social care in Harrow if the out of hospital 
strategy does not deliver its intended outcomes and for this reason we ask that 
partners engage in the co-design of services and consider issues around the 
financial flow between the health and social care sectors.  We are pleased that 
community services are being developed in advance of any changes to hospital 
services. 
 
Social care is central to the success of the out of hospital strategy and therefore it 
must be ensured that social care colleagues are engaged throughout the process. 
The local authority views the vision of the out of hospital strategy very positively and 
has had engagement with GPs from early on in the process, with the integrated care 
pilot serving as an example where health and social care have worked together to 
deliver the personalisation agenda in the borough and employed a bottom up 
approach to do so.  As we move forward the test will be whether health and social 
care can design more services for the future together. 
 
We welcome the local investment in primary and community services - £17-19m over 
the next three years – and the premise that the funding should follow the patient and 

77



Page 4 of 7 
 

a pathway that is care closer to home.  A challenge remains however in convincing 
people that care closer to home is equivalent or better in quality to what they would 
have received in an acute setting. 
 
The engagement of the CCG with the council, for example through the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, will be vital in ensuring these plans are successfully implemented, 
especially given the council’s new responsibilities around delivering public health 
services for the borough from April 2013.  Indeed there will be a big need to push the 
prevention agenda and promote public health as part of the out of hospital strategy. 
 
The out of hospital plans must address the urgent financial situation in Harrow’s 
health and social care organisations as this will undoubtedly impact upon 
implementation – the short term local financial position must be tackled first and 
foremost.  Indeed we also note that the financial impact of the SaHF proposals on 
social care is not quantified at all in the PCBC however we stress that this must be 
addressed as a matter of urgency. 
 
New census data released earlier in the summer provides an updated picture of the 
demographic drivers for changing health needs in the borough.  These need to be 
considered in the strategies for out of hospital care and acute reconfiguration.  
Harrow is a borough of rich diversity and the needs of all of its communities – those 
established and those more transient – must be met in plans for health and social 
care. 
 
We encourage a thorough review of the implementation of the out of hospital strategy 
in Harrow before any changes to acute services start in 2016.  We suggest that 
collaborative planning between health and social care partners will yield the best 
results. 
 
 
Poor patient satisfaction with primary care in Harrow 
There is poor patient satisfaction with primary care in Harrow especially in access to 
GP appointments and out of hours services.  Harrow patients, in the 2010/11 
patients’ survey, score these with 56.3% and 57.8% satisfaction respectively – both 
ranking in the bottom 10% nationally.  This must be addressed by the out of hospital 
plans and development of GP provision in the borough. 
 
A recent local review of unscheduled care in Harrow found the peak in people’s use 
of the Urgent Care Centre at Northwick Park Hospital to be between 6pm to 12pm, 
namely when most GP surgeries have closed yet times better suit patients for 
appointments.  This suggests that GP services need to be open later in the day and 
perhaps out or hours services need to be available in each GP network cluster. 
 
 
Capacity and infrastructure at Northwick Park Hospital 
We remain concerned about the capacity and infrastructure at Northwick Park 
Hospital to take on the growth in demand in its services and the additional patient 
flow.  Under each of the options there are significant increases in inpatient and 
outpatient activity and A&E attendances at Northwick Park Hospital forecast.  There 

78



Page 5 of 7 
 

is a need to invest in Northwick Park Hospital’s services, workforce and estate to 
make it best positioned to be able to accommodate a growing number of patients. 
 
Information obtained by the Ealing Hospital SOS Campaign through the Freedom of 
Information Act gives the number of times hospitals within NW London proposals 
placed a divert on admissions to their A&E Departments.  We can see from this that 
of the 49 instances between February 2011 (from when this data has been collated 
centrally) and August 2012, 45 were planned closures by Northwick Park Hospital.  
None of these resulted in total closure and in most cases patients were diverted to 
Central Middlesex Hospital (i.e. an internal diversion).  To us this highlights the 
urgent need to significantly invest in the A&E capacity at Northwick Park Hospital, 
even if the proposals within SaHF are not pursued, especially given that A&E 
functions at Central Middlesex Hospital are no longer available 24/7.  The completion 
of the £20m redevelopment of Northwick Park Hospital’s A&E is welcomed as a 
matter of urgency.   
 
 
Travel, transport and access issues for Northwick Park Hospital 
Ensuring that the ambulance, private car and public transport journeys are not 
adversely impacted by the increased patient flow to Northwick Park Hospital is crucial 
to patients and their visitors.  Northwick Park underground station (Metropolitan line) 
is not a step-free station as it does not have lifts, ramps or escalators at the station.  
Nearby stations at Harrow on the Hill (Metropolitan line) and Kenton (Bakerloo and 
Overground lines) also lack step-free access.  There may also be travel issues for the 
staff transferring from other hospital sites to Northwick Park Hospital in terms of 
getting to/from work each day if travelling to Northwick Park Hospital takes longer or 
is more difficult than their original place of work. 
 
We learnt at our special meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee that there are long timeframes associated with and costs incurred to 
changing bus routes – the SaHF programme should factor these into their plans 
should there be a need to change bus routes to ensure greater accessibility to 
Northwick Park Hospital.  We also encourage the trust to conduct a disability impact 
assessment for its site to ensure that all factors regarding accessibility under the new 
proposals have been given due regard. 
 
 
Workforce issues in the short and medium term 
Many staff will be impacted by the proposed changes for example in staff transferring 
to different sites, the need to recruit more consultants (paediatrics), and changes to 
maternity services.  This will also impact on those staff at major hospitals who will 
see their hospitals grow in demand.  The proposals have the best chance of 
succeeding at the implementation stage if the workforce is included in discussions 
and all staff have been fully involved and engaged in the plans for change.  To this 
end, we ask that the SaHF programme continues to engage with all staff groups on a 
regular basis and that progress on this is reported back to the Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee. 
 
 
 

79



Page 6 of 7 
 

Financial position of NW London Hospitals Trust 
Even following its proposed merger with Ealing Hospital, regardless of which option 
is implemented, NW London Hospitals Trust is forecast to remain in deficit in 2014/15 
following the changes because of the financial forecasts for Central Middlesex 
Hospital.  Central Middlesex Hospital will not achieve financial viability and this will 
impact on the trust’s overall position.  Furthermore, the trust holds the ambition to 
become a foundation trust in the near future. 
 
We were told at our special meeting that the SaHf programme is not about saving 
money in the NW London sector but about spending it more wisely.  The programme 
therefore will not answer the serious challenges posed by the current financial 
situations faced by acute trusts in the sector, not least NW London Hospitals Trust’s 
rather precarious financial position and long-term viability.  We would also seek 
further clarification around how any monies harnessed from estate reconfigurations 
will be distributed back into the NHS. 
 
We question what the long term deficit position of the trust will mean for services at 
the trust’s hospitals over the longer-term.  Although the PCBC states that all services 
will stay as they are at Northwick Park Hospital as a result of the SaHF proposals, we 
seek assurances that this will remain the case over the longer-term and that indeed 
services will be invested in. 
 
 
Long term feasibility of proposed changes 
The closure of hospital A&Es raises questions about the future of hospitals in the 
longer term e.g. Central Middlesex Hospital and possibly Ealing Hospital.  There is 
real concern that services will diminish incrementally at hospitals downgraded to local 
hospital status, as fewer and fewer services stay clinically viable. 
 
We are pleased that it was confirmed at our special meeting that no specialist 
services would be removed from Northwick Park Hospital. 
 
 
Communicating with the public 
Communications to residents regarding the rationale for changes in acute services 
and the out of hospital transformation is crucially important.  The appropriate use of 
primary care and Urgent Care Centres (UCC) is highlighted as one area which could 
benefit from concentrated effort in communicating key messages to the general 
public, especially the most vulnerable in the community who may use these services 
the most.  A potential challenge for the NHS which we hope will be tackled head-on 
is public education to ensure that the public access the right facilities at the right time, 
and that they are aware of what different care settings are most appropriate for. 
 
Educating the public around what an UCC is and when it should be used will be key 
to the success of the proposals.  The ‘111’ telephone number as a single point of 
access to health and social care could direct the patient to the right place at the right 
time.  It is vital that community leaders such as councillors and health and social care 
professionals such as GPs and community pharmacists are all assured and 
consistent in their definition of an UCC and what services it offers to residents.  We 
understand from the PCBC that all UCCs will offer a 24/7 service by definition in 

80



Page 7 of 7 
 

future.  There will need to be a shift in the public mindset in that should they have a 
health problem and cannot get an appointment with their GP immediately that A&E is 
not necessarily the most appropriate place to go instead.  Indeed we were told by a 
NHS Chief Executive “the problem with A&E is that the lights are on 24 hours a day” 
and people know that they can access it whenever they want although it may not be 
the most appropriate setting for care. 
 
It is important that communications are pitched at individual borough level.  Whilst 
recognising that the SaHF programme is a regional programme for NW London the 
messages and issues for the residents of each borough are very different and 
communications should reflect this being at local level – thinking through the specific 
concerns for each borough and their own population needs and getting the 
messages right accordingly. 
 
 
 
Concluding comments 
Given that strategic health authorities and PCTs will cease to exist from 1 April 2013, 
we seek clarity on the routes for holding health decision makers to account as the 
proposals progress.  Our involvement in the NW London JHOSC will continue for its 
duration and at a more local level our scrutiny committee will continue to monitor 
progress and champion our residents’ concerns.   
 
Should you need any elaboration on the evidence used in our comments, please do 
not hesitate to contact us through the Scrutiny Unit - details as given on the front 
page. 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Krishna James 
Chair of Harrow Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee and Harrow member 
on the NW London Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Councillor Vina Mithani 
Vice-Chair of Harrow Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee and Harrow member 
on the NW London Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 
Councillor Bill Stephenson 
Leader of Harrow Council  
 

Councillor Margaret Davine 
Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Portfolio Holder 

 
 
 
 

81



82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date: 

 

24th October 2012 

Subject: 

 

Scrutiny Lead Member Report 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director, 
Strategic Commissioning 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

• Cllr Jerry Miles, Policy Lead, 
Resources 

• Cllr Tony Ferrari, Performance Lead, 
Resources 

• Cllr Zarina Khalid, Policy Lead, 
Children and Families 

• Cllr Christine Bednell, Performance 
Lead, Children and Families 

• Cllr Stephen Wright, Policy Lead, 
Environment and Enterprise  

• Cllr Sue Anderson, Performance Lead, 
Environment and Enterprise 

 

Exempt: No 

Enclosures: 

 

Reports from the Scrutiny Lead Members 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

 
The report accompanies the reports from the Scrutiny Lead Members.   
 

Recommendations:  
The Committee is requested to consider the reports from the Scrutiny Lead 
Members and agree the actions proposed therein. 
 

 

Agenda Item 13 
Pages 83 to 90 

83



 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introductory paragraph 
This report outlines details of the work of the Scrutiny Lead Members.  
 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications associated with this report 
 

Performance Issues 
There are no performance issues associated with this report. 
 

Environmental Impact 
There is no environmental impact associated with this report 

 
Risk Management Implications 
There are no risks associated with this report. 

 
Equalities implications 
Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  No  
 
This report outlines the activities of the scrutiny lead councillors; it makes no 
proposals to change service delivery. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
The Scrutiny Lead Members’ responsibilities cover all areas of the council’s 
activity.   
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
Contact:  Lynne Margetts, Service Manager Scrutiny, 020 8420 
9387, lynne.margetts@harrow.gov.uk   
 

Background Papers:  None 

84



 
SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBERS’ REPORT: 
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
17th September 2012 
 
Attendees 
 
Cllr Christine Bednell, Catherine Doran, Corporate Director Children and 
Families; Leora Cruddas, Divisional Manager, Quality Assurance & Service 
Improvement; Lynne Margetts, Service Manager Scrutiny  
 
Service Plan Priorities 
The councillors had been provided with a copy of Children and Families 
Services Directorate service plan.  The purpose of the meeting was to identify 
potential issues for scrutiny consideration for the remainder of the current 
administration. 
 
The Corporate Director emphasised her view that the work which had begun 
prior to the Ofsted inspection with regard to safeguarding children should 
continue.  She felt that this is an area of particular concern to the council.  
Following the outcome of the Ofsted inspection, there have been 
improvements in children’s services, however, there are still areas of concern 
and she welcomed scrutiny’s support in delivering further improvements. 
 
The Divisional Director will send the most up to date version of the Ofsted 
improvement plan to the scrutiny team.  However, in discussion it emerged 
that given that the Ofsted safeguarding framework had been significantly 
strengthened, that this should be used as the basis of scrutiny’s approach to 
this work, but perhaps focussing on specific components of a child/young 
person’s experience of the safeguarding system and benchmarking with the 
best performers.  The Divisional Director suggested that following the ‘Child’s 
Journey’ as identified by the Munro Review might provide a specific focus.  
The following areas were suggested; 

• Early intervention 

• Access to the services 

• Youth Offending 
All of these services have a profound impact on the overall success of a 
safeguarding system 
 
For Action: 
It was agreed that the Children’s Leads will meet to discuss further a scope 
for the consideration of the council’s safeguarding services and that this will 
be presented to the Scrutiny Leadership Group for inclusion in the scrutiny 
work programme. 

85



 
SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBERS’ REPORT: 
RESOURCES 
 
12TH September 2012 
 
Attendees 
 
Cllr Jerry Miles, Policy Lead Member, Resources: Cllr Tony Ferrari, 
Performance Lead Member Resources; Lynne Margetts, Service Manager 
Scrutiny 
 
Debt Recovery 
The Divisional Director Collections and Benefits had provided the lead 
members with a written update on the implementation of the 
recommendations from the Debt Recovery challenge panel which took place 
at the end of 2011.  Having considered this response, the lead members 
remain concerned that the proposals included in the response, whilst 
supporting the council to develop a unified and strategic approach to the 
recovery of debts, do not address the key issue from the panel: the 
establishment of a process prior to the implementation of bankruptcy 
proceedings to identify vulnerable residents.  Subsequent discussions have 
clarified that a process for this is currently under development.  The lead 
members will seek an opportunity to comment on this process during its 
development and propose the deferral of the 6-monthly update to P&F to the 
April meeting of the committee. 
 
For Action: 
The lead members will seek further information with regard to the 
establishment of a process prior to the implementation of bankruptcy 
proceedings to identify vulnerable residents.   
 
Schools Place Planning 
Cllr Ferrari had met with officers to consider how demographic information is 
used by the council to secure sufficient school places.  There have been a 
number of problems with the calculation of the number of children who require 
places which have resulted in the need for ‘bulge’ classes.  Officers were able 
to explain what action has been taken to secure a more accurate picture of he 
number of children requiring places as a result of more detailed interrogation 
of projections information and similar interrogation will take place when the 
results of the 2011 Census are made available in January 2013. 
 
Cllr Ferrari remains concerned with regard to the number of school places 
available going forward and a further meeting with the Head of Service-
Education Strategy & School Organisation will be requested. 
 
For Action 
Further meeting to discuss the implications of demographic changes on the 
school place capacity to be scheduled once the Census 2011 and associated 
GLA projections are available – January.  Meeting with schools place planning 
officers to be scheduled to discuss the implications in February. 

86



 
SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBERS’ REPORT: 
ENVIRONMENT AND ENTERPRISE  
 
19 SEPTEMBER 2012 – PLACE SHAPING BRIEFING 
 
Attendees 
• Councillor Sue Anderson, Scrutiny Performance Lead, E&E 
• Councillor Stephen Wright, Scrutiny Policy Lead, E&E 
• Andrew Trehern, Corporate Director, Place Shaping 
• Mark Billington, Head of Economic Development and Research 
• Phil Greenwood, Head of Major Development Projects [part] 
• Phil Loveland-Cooper, Head of Corporate Estate [part] 
• Andy Parsons, Head of Service, Business Management [part] 
• Les Simpson, Senior Professional, Business Management 
• Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Apologies were received from Stephen Kelly, Divisional Director, Planning.   
 
NOTES 
 
1. Introduction  

Members had been provided in advance of the meeting with a copy of the 
service plan for the directorate.  The Members were provided with an 
updated copy of the quarterly directorate scorecard, which included 
performance at quarter 1.   

 
2. Discussion 

 
Directorate scorecard 
Members reviewed the scorecard alongside the service plan.  The 
Corporate Director advised that the merger of the directorate with 
Environmental Services will be significantly influenced by commissioning 
panels.   
 
The Corporate Director stressed that the scorecard should be viewed as a 
snapshot of overall performance, intended to provide at a glance – 
Members could then ask for further performance as they saw fit.   
 
Mobile and flexible working 
The Corporate Director advised that the project has received Cabinet 
approval and is now in the implementation phase.  A project manager has 
been appointed.  The project is being rolled out in conjunction with IT; it is 
dependent on the establishment of the Sharepoint software before 
implementation in the business.  This is likely to be in April 2013.   
 
The delay is related to the wide range of other IT initiatives that are also 
being implemented, including upgrades and the introduction of PRISM in 
public realm.  
 
Neighbourhood planning  
Members were advised that one group has expressed interest in 
neighbourhood planning.  Representatives from the Stanmore Society met 

87



 
with the Corporate Director, Divisional Director, Planning and a 
representative of Legal.  The society will need to decide if it wishes to 
apply.  Government subsidy is available to councils to support the costs of 
supporting neighbourhood planning.   
 
A Member asked whether any efforts had been made to encourage other 
groups to apply.  While no specific efforts had been made, the council had 
many pre-existing links with established local groups.  Neighbourhood 
planning was in effect aimed outside London where groups such as parish 
councils could take on the role.   
 
Corporate Estate 
Members were advised that reporting against Rent arrears for current 
tenants as a % of rental income is an annualised projection of the outturn.  
Performance throughout the year is therefore affected by when payments 
are received.  Some tenants are billed quarterly (a legal requirement) but 
have an informal arrangement with the council to pay on a monthly basis, 
which distorts arrears.  The policy lead Member suggested that the target 
should be to collect 100% of arrears; the Head of Service responded that 
the team aimed for this, but that in practice a 95% target had been 
selected as a realistic goal. 
 
Budget Overview 2012/13 
Members were advised that within the service plan, directorate income is 
given as a budget figure, profiled in quarters.  Income is monitored weekly.  
Income relates to real cash (from building control and development 
management services) along with a subsidy to cover the activities of the 
department.  If cash income falls agency spend can be reduced.  The 
business area is becoming more difficult; the impact of policy changes 
such as the definition of permitted development is not clear.   
 
Unemployment 
The Head of Economic Development and Research advised that the 
purpose of the target to Increase the percentage difference between 
Harrow and the rest of London in respect of JSA [Job Seekers Allowance] 
claims is to highlight Harrow’s performance against the rest of London, in 
terms of assessing the impact of local initiatives to improve levels of 
employment.  Alternatives would be to measure the number of individuals 
completing specific projects but this would provide little information about 
the impact.  
 
Members were advised that further funding has been secured for the 
construction training initiative.  Thirty young people have participated in the 
Xcite programme for unemployed graduates, undertaking placements in 
the public and voluntary sectors.  So far more than half of the unemployed 
graduates have gone on to secure permanent jobs.  It is beneficial to 
target this group as they are not eligible for apprenticeship schemes 
because of the qualification level that they have achieved.  The 
apprenticeships scheme will be dependent on opportunities materialising.   
 
 
 

88



 
Vitality profile 
The production of the profile will ultimately depend on the release of the 
census data from 2011.  The census data has confirmed the increase in 
population in the borough.   
 
The Policy Lead member enquired as to whether the census would have 
any impact of the development of the Kodak site.  The Corporate Director 
responded that decisions in relation to the site would be driven the Core 
Strategy and DPDs (Development Plan Documents).  All had also been 
subject to extensive consultation, examination in public and professional 
scrutiny.   
 
Community engagement  
A Member asked for further clarification of the activities of the department 
in reaching the ‘hard to hear’.  The Corporate Director responded that 
there had been engagement with these groups in developing the DPDs.  
Prior to that, consultation on the supplementary planning document on 
lifetime homes had specifically engaged with voluntary sector disability 
groups.  The Member responded that this did not necessarily reach those 
not engaged in groups, but conceded that the council does not have an 
extensive community development function.  The Corporate Director 
added that each planning application offered residents the opportunity to 
engage with the council should they want to.   
 
Harrow residents’ card 
A Member raised the issue of the impact of current parking policies on 
district centres, particularly areas such as Pinner, which border which 
borders Hillingdon.  This borough issues a card that offers parking 
concessions to local residents such as the first thirty minutes’ parking free 
of charge.  It also can be used as a library, leisure and shopping discount 
card.  The Head of Economic Development and Research advised that 
proposals for a Harrow card are being developed, which includes 
discussions with Bracknell Forest, who hold the licence for the 
technology.   
  
The Head of Economic Development and Research advised that 
proposals for a Harrow card are being developed, which includes 
discussions with Bracknell Forest, who hold the licence for the technology.  
He added that although there are some exceptions, in general the vacancy 
rate in Harrow is falling.  In the future retail centres may need to adopt a 
greater leisure/hospitality focus, in the context of the growth of the internet 
for retail shopping.   
 
A parking review has been undertaken but focused on zoning for charging 
rather than commercial issues and yield.  For a smart card system to work, 
the full parking infrastructure would need to be replaced, which would 
involve capital and revenue costs.  Car journeys have been falling as a 
result of improvements to public transport; there has been some modal 
shift.  Requirements for on/off road parking would vary across the 
borough; any free parking period would have an impact on yield.   
 

89



 
With regard to parking enforcement, it was noted that there are 14 parking 
enforcement officers for the whole borough.   
 

3. Next steps – FOR ACTION 
• That the Leads receive a briefing on the development of proposals for 

the Harrow card, to include the scope of the project and the objectives 
referred to at the meeting as well as an indication of the likely next steps.  
(Action – Place Shaping)   

• That the Leads meet with the new Corporate Director for Environment 
and Enterprise on commencement of her employment with the Council 
(Action – Scrutiny)   

 
 
 
 

90


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 School Expansion Programme
	8 Academies School Conversions
	Academies School Conversions - Annexe A

	9 Youth Justice Plan and Youth Offending Improvement Plan
	YJPLan
	YJPLanapp
	Final YOT Improvement Plan

	11 Shaping a Healthier Future for North West London - Harrow's response to consultation by NHS NW London
	Harrow Council Response to SaHF- appendix

	13 Scrutiny Lead Member Report

